
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


2



3



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The August 19, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order 6 
by Village President Dave Lienau at 6:00 PM.  7 
 8 
Present:  Village President Dave Lienau and Trustees Scott Baker, John Clove, Shane Solomon, 9 
Pat Duffy and Nora Zacek.    10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, Utility 12 
Superintendent Steve Jacobson and Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant. 13 
 14 
Others:   Laddie Chapman, Ron Kane, Ken Church, Gerry and Karen Knudson, Sharon 15 
Doersching, Denise Bhirdo, Greg Casperson, Collin Dahl, Ron Flittner, Kathy Enquist, Jeff 16 
Johnson, John and Jill Wettstein and one other individual. 17 
 18 
Approval of minutes as published: 19 
As to the minutes for the July 15, 2014 meeting of the Village Board: 20 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker to approve the minutes for the July 15, 21 
2014 meeting of the Village Board as presented. Motion carried - All ayes. 22 
 23 
As to the minutes for the July 31, 2014 special meeting of the Village Board: 24 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker to approve the minutes for the July 31, 2014 25 
special meeting of the Village Board as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Comments and Correspondence 28 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to address a non-agenda item. No one responded. 29 
 30 
New Village Board Business 31 
 32 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to confirm and appoint President Lienau’s nomination of a 33 
qualified citizen to fill Pam Abshire’s vacant seat on the Village Board for the remainder of 34 
her unexpired term: 35 
Lienau indicated that he would like to nominate Kathy Enquist to fill Pam Abshire’s vacant seat 36 
on the Village Board.  37 
 38 
Enquist introduced herself and indicated that she owns Dogma Grooming Studio. She is very 39 
pleased that all the waterfront parkland was created in the Village and “would like to be part of 40 
all that’s happening”.  41 
 42 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Zacek that Kathy Enquist shall be appointed to fill 43 
Pam Abshire’s vacant seat on the Village Board for the remainder of her unexpired term. Motion 44 
carried – All ayes.  45 
 46 
The Board members welcomed Enquist and indicated that they look forward to working with 47 
her.  48 
 49 

4



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-2- 

Item No. 1. Consider a motion to approve Ordinance No. 230, which amends numerous 1 
portions of the Official Map for the Village of Sister Bay relating to the areas east of 2 
Canterbury Lane and south of Maple Drive, south of Cherrywood Lane and west of STH 57: 3 
Jackson presented a draft of a revised version of the Official Map for the Village of Sister Bay, 4 
and pointed out the amendments which have been made in the areas east of Canterbury Lane 5 
and south of Maple Drive, south of Cherrwood Lane and west of STH 57. (Those amendments 6 
will “clean up” the map so that it accurately reflects roadways which have been planned by 7 
developers and approved by the Plan Commission and Village Board.) On July 22nd the Plan 8 
Commission conducted a public hearing regarding the previously mentioned Official Map 9 
amendments, and is recommending that all of them be made. 10 
 11 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the Village Board accepts the 12 
recommendation of the Plan Commission and approves Ordinance No. 230, which amends the 13 
portions of the Official Map for the Village of Sister Bay as it relates to the area east of 14 
Canterbury Lane and south of Maple Drive, south of Cherrywood Lane and West of STH 57, as 15 
presented. A copy of the revised Official Map is hereby attached and incorporated by 16 
reference. Motion carried – All ayes.  17 
 18 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to accept the recommendation of the Bay Shore Drive 19 
Reconstruction Oversight Committee that the cost of individual property service upgrades be 20 
added to the costs of the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project: 21 
Mike Maltby of Action Electric was hired by the Village to consult with private property owners 22 
and determine the electrical service requests and upgrades necessary for the Village to move 23 
forward with the Overhead Utilities Burial Project. The preliminary cost estimates for the 24 
affected properties, which total $42,500, are depicted on a document which was included in 25 
the meeting packets, and the Bay Shore Drive Oversight Committee has recommended that the 26 
affected property owners be reimbursed accordingly. 27 
 28 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Clove that the Village Board accepts the 29 
recommendation of the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Committee and adds the 30 
individual electrical service upgrade costs depicted on the document which was included in the 31 
meeting packets to the estimated costs of the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project. If the 32 
actual cost of the individual service upgrades exceeds the amount depicted on the previously 33 
mentioned document, up to $45,000 may be expended for the upgrades. Motion carried – All 34 
ayes.35 
 36 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to act on the recommendation of the Finance and the Water, 37 
Wastewater and Storm Sewer Committees to approve Resolution No. 293, authorizing a 38 
PILOT on Sister Bay’s Water Utility: 39 
For quite some time the Village has elected to waive a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) on the 40 
Water Utility per authorizing Resolution, but the Water, Wastewater and Storm Sewer 41 
Committee and the Finance Committee have recommended that a PILOT now be imposed. The 42 
Public Service Commission regulates PILOT payments on public water utilities, and, as such, 43 
determines the allowable PILOT amount. Because it is funded by an enterprise fund, the Marina 44 
is also subject to a PILOT, and that has been imposed for several years. The Finance Committee 45 
has recommended that the PILOT on the Marina be reduced by an amount equal to the Water 46 
Utility PILOT as the Marina’s cash projections are not favorable. (Pro-active steps are being 47 
taken to alleviate this problem, but there still are fixed expenses which will come into play.) A 48 
draft of a Resolution establishing a PILOT for the Village of Sister Bay Water Utility was 49 
included in the meeting packets, and, if approved, that Resolution will have to be submitted to 50 

5



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-3- 

the Public Service Commission, which will determine the ultimate impact on water rates. The 1 
new rates would not go into effect until the second quarter of 2015. 2 
 3 
The Utilities Superintendent, Steve Jacobson, indicated that he believes there will be both short 4 
term and long term implications for rate payers if the PILOT is approved and doesn’t believe “it 5 
is the right way to do business” as the people who use the most water will be negatively 6 
impacted. 7 
 8 
Neuman indicated that it is her understanding that when the members of the Water, 9 
Wastewater and Storm Sewer Committee recommended that a PILOT be established they 10 
thought the funds generated would be deposited in the General Fund. The Finance Committee 11 
has recommended that the funds be used to offset the Marina PILOT. A rate study is currently 12 
being performed, and whenever such a  study is done the PSC looks at a number of factors, 13 
including fire protection fees, which will quite likely increase because there have been a 14 
number of improvements in the Village. Because of the provisions of Act 20, any increase in 15 
fire protection fees has to be deducted from the allowable levy, and, therefore, the General 16 
Fund will be negatively impacted. 17 
 18 
Lienau pointed out that the members of the Finance Committee did assume that the money 19 
generated by the Water Utility PILOT would be deposited into the General Fund. The intent of 20 
the Committee, during a separate discussion, was to reduce the Marina PILOT by an amount 21 
equal to the Water Utility PILOT.  22 
 23 
Solomon noted that he likes the fact that the money generated by the PILOT would be used to 24 
offset the Marina PILOT, but also noted that years down the road when there are others on the 25 
Board the funds generated by the Water Utility PILOT could be used for some other purpose 26 
than offsetting the Marina PILOT. 27 
 28 
Clove stated, “You can’t take 1/3 of your operating profit and sustain yourself.” Virtually 100% 29 
of the Marina’s profits go toward paying the PILOT and administrative expenses. The suggestion 30 
has been made that Marina fees be increased by 3% every year but eventually you “reach a 31 
point of no return”. The Marina is now operating at a loss and has to get relief from the General 32 
Fund as it simply can’t sustain itself any more.  33 
 34 
Denise Bhirdo asked for clarification as to why this discussion was even taking place. She does 35 
not understand why water rates would be increased to offset expenses at the Marina and 36 
“thinks it’s wrong”. She firmly believes there must be some other way to address the financial 37 
difficulties at the Marina. If the additional money which is generated goes into the General 38 
Fund or if taxes are increased she could understand, but that is not what is happening. 39 
 40 
Lienau acknowledged that there may have been a poor choice of words made when the Marina 41 
PILOT was tied to the Water Utility PILOT. Whether the money for the Marina comes from a 42 
PILOT for the Water Utility or the money comes from the General Fund or some other fund “it’s 43 
still going to end up somewhere on the taxpayer”. The Finance Committee is still trying to 44 
“figure out why and how”. The whole discussion of PILOTS and enterprise funds came about 45 
when the question arose as to why one enterprise fund was being taxed and not the other. 46 
 47 
Duffy noted that if you go back five years and look at the history of the Marina PILOT the 48 
Marina could afford that payment and still sustain itself. That is no longer the case. When 49 
people pay their taxes they know the money collected will go to the Village as well as a 50 

6



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-4- 

number of different entities. In his mind the amount of the PILOT should be equal to the 1 
amount of tax money paid to other entities, which is a little less than half of the taxes collected. 2 
He feels bad this is coming up this way as there are two separate issues coming into play. He 3 
was the one “leading the charge” for the Water Utility PILOT funds being used to offset the 4 
Marina PILOT because he is on the Marina Committee and can’t stand to see the Marina “run 5 
into the ground because of overtaxing”. When the Utility was created there was a waiver of a 6 
Utility PILOT, but the decision has now been made that it should be imposed. Typically Utility 7 
PILOTS are imposed right away, but Village officials determined that it should not be imposed 8 
until such time as the Utility could afford it. That time has come. Because of all the 9 
improvements which will be made downtown in the near future the Village is “strapped for 10 
cash” and needs to find revenue sources. Duffy believes imposition of the Water Utility PILOT 11 
is a way for Village officials to do “what should have been done in the first place regardless of 12 
the Marina”. 13 
 14 
Ken Church indicated that this issue was addressed when he was on the Board and “was a bad 15 
idea then and still is a bad idea now”. He would much rather pay higher taxes. 16 
 17 
Sharon Doersching indicated that the sewer and water rates have been going up on a regular 18 
basis and she would also much rather pay higher taxes. “To rob Peter to pay Paul” simply 19 
doesn’t make any sense. 20 
 21 
Solomon pointed out that it will be nearly impossible for the Village to increase taxes because 22 
of levy limits. 23 
 24 
Clove noted that the Marina PILOT started out at $50,000. It is now $161,000. He believes the 25 
Marina has become a “cash cow” for the Village. A perfect example of this was when the 26 
Marina was asked to pay a portion of the expenses related to the purchase of the Johnson 27 
property. He also stressed that the Marina brings in several thousand dollars of revenue for a 28 
number of area businesses on an annual basis.  29 
 30 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board accepts the 31 
recommendation of the Finance Committee and the Water, Wastewater and Storm Sewer 32 
Committee and approves Resolution No. 293 establishing a PILOT for the Village of Sister Bay 33 
Water Utility as presented. Motion carried with Baker opposed and Zacek abstaining. 34 
 35 
Item No. 4.  Consider a motion to change the name of the Water, Wastewater and Storm 36 
Sewer Committee to the Water, Sewer and Storm Sewer Committee: 37 
The recommendation has been made that the name of the Water, Wastewater and Storm Sewer 38 
Committee be changed to the Water, Sewer and Storm Sewer Committee. 39 
 40 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Zacek that the Village’s By-Laws be amended in 41 
such fashion that they state that the name of the Water, Wastewater and Storm Sewer 42 
Committee has been changed to the Water, Sewer and Storm Sewer Committee. Motion carried 43 
– All ayes 44 
 45 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to accept the recommendation of the Finance Committee to 46 
reallocate administrative personnel costs by passing and adopting Resolution No. 294: 47 
When the 2014 budget was prepared the position of Village Administrator was vacant so 48 
allocation of administrative personnel costs were left at 2013 rates. In February Mike Konecny, 49 
the Head Auditor, noted that the Village’s allocation of administrative personnel costs to certain 50 

7



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-5- 

funds appeared to be low, given the time spent on the Bay Shore Drive Utility Project and the 1 
increased activity in the TIF District. Neuman and Jackson subsequently revised the 2 
administrative allocations and presented that data to the Finance Committee, which has 3 
recommended that they be approved. 4 
 5 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 6 
recommendation of the Finance Committee and reallocates administrative personnel costs by 7 
passing and adopting Resolution No. 294, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 8 
 9 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to accept the recommendation of the Finance Committee to 10 
reallocate several capital reserve funds by passing and adopting Resolution No. 295: 11 
At its July 24, 2014 meeting the Finance Committee reviewed available capital reserve fund 12 
balances and made a series of recommendations regarding reallocation of some of those funds. 13 
All the new allocations were explained in detail by Neuman. 14 
 15 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the Village Board accepts the 16 
recommendation of the Finance Committee to reallocate several capital reserve funds and 17 
passes and adopts Resolution No. 295, which amends the 2014 Capital Projects Budget, as 18 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 19 
  20 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to confirm and appoint President Lienau’s nomination of a 21 
Trustee to fill the vacancy for a Village Board Liaison on the SBAA Board of Directors: 22 
Lienau indicated that this agenda item will not be addressed until the next meeting of the 23 
Village Board. 24 
 25 
Item No. 9. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 26 
Lienau gave the following oral report: 27 

   County officials have actively started to work on the 2015 budget. To date the main 28 
topic of discussion has been personnel costs. There is still a lot of work to be done on 29 
the budget, but it will be addressed at length during the next couple of months. 30 

 The EMS Dept. has asked that six new Paramedics be hired to staff an additional 31 
ambulance in the Sturgeon Bay area. (On a number of occasions multiple emergency 32 
calls have come in and there simply weren’t enough ambulances or staff members to go 33 
around.)   34 

 A large tower project will be implemented soon by the County, and fiber will have to be 35 
run to each of the new towers. This will be quite costly. 36 

   Another costly item will be road repairs.  37 
 38 
Item No. 10. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 39 
monthly bills: 40 
Payment Approval Reports for the period July 17, 2014 through August 19, 2014 were included 41 
in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents. 42 
 43 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the monthly bills depicted on the 44 
reports which were included in the meeting packets totaling $436,807.86 are all approved. 45 
Motion carried – All ayes.  46 
 47 
Budget Reports for the 6 month period ending June 30, 2014 were also included in the meeting 48 
packets and Neuman explained the applicable data.  49 

8



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-6- 

Item No. 16. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 1 
committee, official or employee: 2 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be placed on a future agenda or referred to 3 
committee, official or employee: 4 

 From time to time it becomes necessary to engage engineers or other professionals to 5 
satisfy requests for information from Village Board members. It can get quite costly to 6 
pay for such services, and, therefore, Jackson requested that everyone keep this fact in 7 
mind. 8 

   The Administrative Committee will be asked to nominate a person to serve as an 9 
alternate member on the Marina Committee. 10 

 Appointment of a Village Board Liaison on the SBAA Board of Directors will be 11 
addressed at the next Village Board Meeting. 12 

 Appointment of a Trustee(s) to fill the vacancies on Committees which were created as 13 
a result of Pam Abshire’s resignation from the Board will likewise be addressed at the 14 
next Village Board Meeting. 15 

   16 
Committee Reports: 17 
(1) Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee 18 
The Administrative Committee has not met recently. 19 
 20 
(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee 21 
The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met recently.  22 
 23 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee 24 
The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently.    25 
 26 
(4) Door County Coastal Byways Commission 27 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Coastal 28 
Byways Commission met on August 14, 2014, but those minutes have not been completed yet. 29 
 30 
(5) DCEDC  31 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The regular 32 
monthly meeting of the DCEDC was conducted on August 11, 2014. At that time the Board 33 
members toured the Sturgeon Bay Boys & Girls Club. 34 
 35 
(6) Economic Development Committee 36 
The Economic Development Committee has not met recently.  37 
 38 
(7) Finance Committee 39 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.   40 
 41 
(8) Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 42 
The Fire Board met yesterday but those minutes have not been completed yet.  43 
 44 
(9) Historical Society 45 
Things are going well at the Corner of the Past. The members of the Historical Society Board of 46 
Directors would like to erect a new sign for the Corner of the Past, and the applicable 47 
paperwork should be submitted to Jackson in the near future.    48 
 49 

9



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-7- 

(10) Library Commission 1 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  2 
 3 
(11) Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 4 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Marina 5 
Committee also met on August 14, 2014 but those minutes have not been completed yet. A 6 
$15,000 grant has been received for public restroom improvements at the Marina. 7 
 8 
The Marina Fest Committee met on August 7, 2014 but those minutes have not been completed 9 
yet. Unfortunately it does not appear that there will be a helicopter at Marina Fest as the pilot 10 
who had expressed interest in coming up here was overbooked. 11 
 12 
(12) Parks 13 
The Parks Committee met on August 6, 2014, but those minutes have not been transcribed yet. 14 
When the work is done on the highway reconstruction project the D.O.T. will be acquiring a 15 
portion of Waterfront Park for right-of-way purposes, and in accord with State regulations must 16 
replace that property in-kind. The Parks Committee recommended that the property adjoining 17 
the Fire Station and/or the Helm’s parcel on Mill Road which is adjacent to the brick parking lot 18 
be considered, but because the property adjoining the Fire Station mainly consists of wetlands 19 
it will not even be considered. At this time appraisals are being done of the Helm’s property. 20 
 21 
(13) Personnel Committee 22 
The Personnel Committee has not met recently. 23 
 24 
(14) Plan Commission 25 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  26 
 27 
(15) SBAA 28 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. As can be noted 29 
in the minutes the management of Husby’s voiced concerns about amendment of the liquor 30 
license regulations. (Last year a condition was imposed on the liquor licenses that businesses 31 
could have outdoor entertainment until 11:00 P.M., but at that time all outdoor seating had to 32 
be vacated. This year when the liquor licenses were approved that condition was changed. 33 
Now outdoor entertainment has to cease by 10:30 P.M. and outdoor seating must be vacated 34 
by 11:00 P.M. This condition has proved to be problematic.)  35 
 36 
Jackson noted that complaints have been received about loud music being played at some local 37 
business establishments. The possibility of amending the Village’s noise regulations will be 38 
discussed at the next Plan Commission Meeting. 39 
 40 
The SBAA Board members voiced concerns that the Village’s Farmer’s Market does not seem to 41 
be well attended. They suggested that next year a different location and day of the week be 42 
considered. 43 
 44 
(16) Teen Center 45 
The Teen Center Board has not met recently. 46 
 47 
(17) Tourism Zone Commission 48 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  49 
 50 

10



Minutes for the August 19, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

I:\2014 Agendas\Board\2014\2014_08\081914 Village Board Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 08/19/2014; Last Printed: 10/13/2014 1:10 PM 

-8- 

(18) Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees 1 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 2 
 3 
(19) Administration/Compensation Oversight 4 
The Administration/Compensation Oversight Committee met on August 13, 2014, but those 5 
minutes have not been completed yet. At the next meeting of the Committee Kelly Hendee, the 6 
Door County Human Resources Director, will be discussing PTO’s with the Committee 7 
members. Hopefully the Committee will be making some recommendations by September or 8 
October.   9 
 10 
(20) Waterfront Oversight 11 
The Waterfront Oversight Committee has not met recently. 12 
 13 
Adjournment: 14 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 15 
Trustees at 7:58 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes, 16 
 17 
Respectfully submitted,  18 

 19 
Janal Suppanz,  20 
Administrative Assistant21 

22 

11



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The September 16, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to 6 
order by Village President Dave Lienau at 7:00 PM.  7 
 8 
Present:  Village President Dave Lienau and Trustees Scott Baker, John Clove, Shane Solomon, 9 
Pat Duffy, Nora Zacek, and Kathy Enquist.    10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, Utility 12 
Superintendent Steve Jacobson and Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant. 13 
 14 
Others:   Laddie Chapman, Brian Frisque, Greg Casperson and Mary Kay Shumway. 15 
 16 
Approval of minutes as published: 17 
As to the minutes for the August 19, 2014 meeting of the Village Board: 18 
Clove indicated that before the minutes for the August 19th meeting were actually approved he 19 
wanted to see the comments he and Duffy made concerning the Utility PILOT program 20 
included in them. Therefore, this Agenda item was tabled until the October 21, 2014 meeting 21 
of the Village Board.  22 
 23 
Comments and Correspondence 24 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 25 
He also noted that the following pieces of correspondence were included in the meeting 26 
packets: 27 

   A letter from Bob Kupfer in which he voices opposition to the Village Board’s decision 28 
to  impose a Utility PILOT. 29 

 A donation request and spreadsheet which were received from the Door County 30 
Humane  Society. 31 

  A call log which was received from the Door County Sheriff’s Department for the period 32 
May 1, 2014 through August 30, 2014.  33 
 34 

Jackson read a letter he had received from Chris Halbur of the DNR aloud. In that letter Halbur 35 
states that she is pleased to inform Jackson that the Village’s application for a Stewardship 36 
Grant for the Beach Expansion Project has been tentatively approved. If final approval is 37 
granted the Village will receive a grant in the amount of $489,285.  38 

 39 
New Village Board Business 40 
Item No. 1. Consider a motion to act on a recommendation from the Plan Commission to pass 41 
and adopt Resolution 297 approving a Certified Survey Map for John Stollenwerk for the area 42 
west of Little Sister Road: 43 
John Stollenwerk is requesting that he be allowed to create a new set of lots which will 44 
recombine and then divide two existing, adjacent lots. (Those lots are currently assigned parcel 45 
numbers 181-23-0011 and 181-23-0009.) A copy of a proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) 46 
was included in the meeting packets and the Board members jointly  reviewed that document. 47 
The Plan Commission has recommended that the CSM be approved. 48 
 49 

12



 

-2- 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 1 
recommendation of the Plan Commission and passes and adopts Resolution 297, which 2 
approves the Certified Survey Map John Stollenwerk submitted for Village of Sister Bay Parcel 3 
Nos. 181-23-0011 and 181-23-0009. Motion carried – All ayes.  4 
 5 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to act on a recommendation of the Plan Commission to 6 
approve Ordinance No. 231, amending and recreating §66.0505(e)(2)(h) – Delivery Trucks in 7 
Residential Neighborhoods for Home Based Businesses: 8 
Apparent conflicts exist between how home-based business owners and residents are treated in 9 
the Zoning Code. (Home-based business owners may have limited deliveries, but there is no 10 
limit imposed for residents.) Technological advances and the rise of Amazon and other online 11 
retailers would indicate that a change in the Zoning Code is warranted.  12 
 13 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board accepts the 14 
recommendation of the Plan Commission and approves Ordinance No. 231, which amends 15 
§66.0505(e)(2)(h) of the Zoning Code – Delivery Trucks in Residential Neighborhoods, as 16 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes.  17 
 18 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to act on a recommendation from the Plan Commission to 19 
approve Ordinance No. 232, amending and recreating §66.0505 – Wind Energy Towers 20 
Apparent conflicts exist between Chapter PSC 128 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, 2009 21 
Act 40 and §66.0505 of the Zoning Code. (The previously mentioned State regulations 22 
supersede local authority to zone for wind energy towers except in incredibly specific 23 
circumstances to protect the health, safety and welfare of citizens.) Ordinance No. 232 was 24 
drafted in an attempt to bring the Zoning Code into compliance with the State regulations and 25 
preclude future lawsuits based on wind energy tower siting. The Plan Commission has 26 
recommended that Ordinance No. 232 be approved. 27 
 28 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board accepts the 29 
recommendation of the Plan  Commission and approves Ordinance No. 232, amending and 30 
recreating §66.0505 – Wind Energy Towers, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 31 
 32 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to pass and adopt Resolution No. 299, accepting a secondary 33 
offer on the Old School Property: 34 
The Village Board previously accepted Al Gokey’s offer to purchase the Old School property 35 
for $415,000. The grace period mentioned in that offer will expire on September 25, 2014. On 36 
August 27, 2014 the Finance Committee reviewed another offer which had been received from 37 
Premier Real Estate for the Old School Property. The terms of the Premier Real Estate offer are 38 
substantially similar to the previously accepted Gokey offer. Premier Real Estate would like to 39 
develop the property into luxury Swedish-style apartments. The Finance Committee has 40 
recommended that the secondary offer be accepted in the event Gokey does not meet the 41 
requirements outlined in his Offer to Purchase.  42 
 43 
Mary Kay Shumway indicated that Premier Real Estate is a renowned rental company and the 44 
owners of that company have “grand plans” for the Old School property. She firmly believes 45 
there is a need for the type of housing they will provide and knows the project would be a 46 
“wonderful addition” to the Village.  47 
. 48 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Zacek that the Village Board accepts the 49 
recommendation of the Finance Committee and passes and adopts Resolution No. 299 50 

13



 

-3- 

accepting the secondary offer for the Old School Property submitted by Premier Real Estate in 1 
the amount of $415,000. Motion carried – All ayes. 2 
 3 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to approve paving a second lift of asphalt on Cherrywood 4 
Lane: 5 
For quite some time money has been held in escrow for a second lift of asphalt on Cherrywood 6 
Lane. (This action was taken in accord with an agreement which was entered into with Dick 7 
Horbinski.) The Door County Highway Department has offered two alternatives for the required 8 
work. A 1.5” lift will cost $22,000 and a 2” lift will cost $28,200. A 2” lift is standard and John 9 
Kolodziej, the Highway Commissioner, is recommending that that option be chosen. 10 
 11 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board approves of the 12 
installation of a 2” lift of asphalt on Cherrywood Lane in accord with the agreement Village 13 
officials entered into with Dick Horbinski a number of years ago. Motion carried – All ayes.  14 
 15 
Item No. 9. Consider a motion to confirm and appoint President Lienau’s nomination of 16 
qualified citizens to fill vacancies on committees, commissions and boards in the Village of 17 
Sister Bay: 18 
Lienau indicated that he would like to nominate Kathy Enquist to fill all the vacancies on 19 
committees which were created as a result of Pam Abshire’s resignation from the Board. 20 
 21 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board confirms President 22 
Lienau’s nomination of Kathy Enquist to fill the vacancies on the Library Commission, the 23 
Personnel Committee, the Teen Center Board and the Administration and Benefits Oversight 24 
Committee. Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
 26 
Item No. 10. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 27 
Lienau gave the following oral report: 28 

    Work is ongoing on the Door County budget for 2015. Several amendments have been 29 
made and referrals have been made to the affected committees. The final version of the 30 
budget should be presented to the County Board in November.   31 

 32 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 33 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 34 
public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 35 
reasons require a closed session: 36 
At 7:31 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board 37 
convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 38 
purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public 39 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call vote 40 
was taken on the motion and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 41 
 42 
          Baker – Aye;    Clove – Aye;    Duffy – Aye; 43 

Enquist – Aye;    Lienau – Aye;   Solomon – Aye; 44 
    Zacek – Aye. 45 

Motion carried. 46 
 47 
Item No. 5.  Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 48 
At 7:41 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board 49 
reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken and the results of that vote were 50 

14



 

-4- 

as follows: 1 
 2 
          Baker – Aye;      Clove – Aye;     Duffy – Aye; 3 

Enquist – Aye;    Lienau – Aye;   Solomon – Aye; 4 
    Zacek – Aye. 5 

Motion carried. 6 
 7 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 8 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board authorizes the 9 
purchase of a 30’ easement on Applewood Lane from Barbara Hull for $30,000. Motion carried 10 
– All ayes. 11 
 12 
Item No. 11. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 13 
monthly bills: 14 
Payment Approval Reports for the period August 21, 2014 through September 16, 2014 were 15 
included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents. 16 
 17 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon that the monthly bills depicted on the 18 
reports which were included in the meeting packets totaling $212,308.57 are all approved. 19 
Motion carried – All ayes.  20 
   21 
Committee Reports: 22 
(1) Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee 23 
The Administrative Committee is recommending that an ad hoc committee comprised of two 24 
Trustees, an SBAA representative and a member of the public be created. The Committee will 25 
be charged with planning for the use of the beach and the performance pavilion and marketing 26 
and promotion of those appurtenances. This issue will be addressed at the next meeting of the 27 
Village Board. 28 
 29 
It was the consensus that a representative of the Door County Visitor Bureau shall be asked to 30 
make a presentation to the Board regarding the guidelines for the use of community marketing 31 
funds.      32 
 33 
(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee 34 
The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee met recently and during that 35 
meeting the Committee members chose street light fixtures and poles as well as banner holders. 36 
The targeted start date for overhead utility line burial is March 1st.  While the work is done there 37 
will only be one lane of traffic downtown.  38 
 39 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee 40 
The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently. The employees at the 41 
County’s IT Department have requested that the conduit for underground fiber be installed 42 
when the work is done on the line burial project.    43 
 44 
(4) Door County Coastal Byways Commission 45 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Committee 46 
met on Thursday, September 11th,  but those minutes have not been completed yet. 47 
 48 
(5) DCEDC  49 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The regular 50 

15



 

-5- 

monthly meeting of the DCEDC was conducted on September 8th, but those minutes have also 1 
not been completed yet. A Bass Master’s Championship Fishing Tournament will be conducted 2 
in Sturgeon Bay from September 27, 2015 through October 4, 2015. This will be a huge boost 3 
to the economy throughout Door County.   4 
 5 
(6) Economic Development Committee 6 
A proposal has been received for marketing of the properties which were identified in the 7 
Economic Development Plan and two of the affected property owners have agreed to help pay 8 
the associated costs.  9 
 10 
(7) Finance Committee 11 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.   12 
 13 
(8) Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 14 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. A Fire 15 
Department budget request will be presented to the Finance Committee soon. 16 
 17 
There is a note in the Fire Board Meeting Minutes that four or five people have fallen off the 18 
bluff at Ellison Bay Bluff Park in the past two years. The suggestion was made that this issue be 19 
referred to County officials for study/resolution of any identified safety issues. 20 
 21 
(9) Historical Society 22 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Historical 23 
Society Board of Directors met last week but Zacek was unable to attend that meeting. 24 
 25 
(10) Library Commission 26 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Library’s 27 
budget request has been received. The Village’s required contribution will increase by 28 
approximately $2,500 in 2015.   29 
 30 
(11) Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 31 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Marina 32 
Committee also met this afternoon. The Marina’s budget request has been finalized and will be 33 
submitted to the Finance Committee. 34 
  35 
Solomon stated that Marina Fest went “swimmingly” and turned out as good as it possibly 36 
could considering the weather.  37 
 38 
(12) Parks 39 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 40 
 41 
(13) Personnel Committee 42 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  43 
 44 
(14) Plan Commission 45 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  46 
 47 
(15) SBAA 48 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Work is ongoing 49 
on planning for Fall Fest. A Pre-Fall Fest Organizational Meeting will be conducted tomorrow 50 

16



I:\2014 Agendas\Board\2014\2014_09\091614 Village Board Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 09/16/14; Last Printed: 10/13/2014 3:55 PM 

-6- 

at 7:00 P.M. That meeting will be conducted in the Village Hall.  1 
 2 
(16) Teen Center 3 
The Teen Center Board has not met recently. 4 
 5 
(17) Tourism Zone Commission 6 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  7 

8 
(18) Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees 9 
The Utilities Committee has not met recently. 10 
 11 
(19) Administration/Compensation Oversight 12 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Lienau 13 
anticipates that the Administration/Compensation Oversight Committee members will formulate 14 
their recommendations to the Board by October or November.   15 
 16 
(20) Waterfront Oversight 17 
The Waterfront Oversight Committee has not met recently. 18 
 19 
12. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, 20 
official or employee: 21 
The following issues will be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, official or 22 
employee: 23 
 24 

    A representative of the Door County Visitor Bureau will be asked to make a 25 
presentation regarding the guidelines for use of Community Marketing funds at a future 26 
Village Board Meeting. 27 

    County officials will be asked to conduct a study regarding the safety issues associated 28 
with the bluff at Ellison Bay Bluff Park.  29 

   The following item will be added to the Agenda for the October 21st meeting of the 30 
Village Board: 31 
Consider a motion to approve revised Committeee/Commission By-Laws which 32 
include creation of an ad hoc committee comprised of two Trustees, an SBAA 33 
representative and a member of the public. (That Committee will be charged 34 
with planning for the use of the beach and the performance pavilion and 35 
marketing and promotion of those appurtenances.) 36 

 37 
Adjournment: 38 
A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Zacek to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 39 
Trustees at 8:46 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes, 40 
 41 
Respectfully submitted,  42 

 43 
Janal Suppanz,  44 
Administrative Assistant45 

17



Preliminary research indicates that the DCVB initiated Strategic Community Partnership 
funding as a means by which to foster buy in amongst the local community tourism promotion organi-
zations around the time of the creation of the room tax.  These monies total several hundred thousands 
of dollars per year and are used by Door County community business associations/tourism promotion 
entities to bolster their budgets for a variety of policy objectives.  SBAA receives approximately 
$37,000 in funding from the DCVB.  TZC collects this money on behalf of the Village of Sister Bay, and 
turns it over to DCVB. 
 
The Village is Sovereign in the case of Room Tax, and has chosen to delegate this task to external enti-
ties in order to more efficiently engage in collection as well as marketing of the Door County Brand. 
   

18

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


While the Village has invested millions of dollars in the last few years on hard assets, lit-
tle has been done to invest in the “soft” infrastructure that builds experiences for our visitors.  Staff is 
charged with economic development as a public policy objective, part of which entails working to re-
cruit developers to Sister Bay to make large capital investments.  Staff has been challenged in doing so, 
given current occupancy levels in Village Transient Lodging establishments.  Staff recognizes the value 
of entertainment and activities in drawing tourists to the Sister Bay area, and as such, has begun to plan 
to expand the offerings of festivals, activities and events in the Village.   
 
Staff would like to build on these successes and has asked for and increase in marketing/activity dollars 
for 2015.  These dollars are requested in a number of fund areas: 
 
 
   

19

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


 
 
 
 

20



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 2 

21



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 3 

22



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 4 

23



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 5 

24



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

26



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 8 

 

27



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

28



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 2 

 

 

 

 

 

29



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 3 

30



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 4 

31



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 5 

 
 
 
 

32



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 6 

33



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 7 

34



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 8 

 

 

 

 

 

35



The Finance Committee has recommended $15,000 be allocated into the CIP for 2015 
for Economic Development.  Previously in 2014, the Board approved an amendment to fund $25,000 
for recruitment/economic development.  Staff has submitted a grant to cover $25,000 for recruitment.  
Should we be successful in receiving funding, staff will reapproach this issue at a later date. Of the 4 
sites identified in the redevelopment plan, the 2 owned by the Village are in some stage of closing for 
development purposes.  The remaining 2 properties are in private hands. 
 
Staff and the PMT are eager to work with private investors on developing the remaining two properties, 
however, there are significant challenges to this at the present time.  
 
Recent analysis by our financial advisor has indicated that we are not able to take advantage of chang-
es in legislation for a reset of TIF base valuation, and as such, will need to grow the TIF organically; this 
was one of the specific requests of the property owners seeking development.  Until such a time as the 
TIF is substantially more positive, we should handle incentives on a case by case basis.  The Village 
should NOT merely subsidize property owners reaping above market rates for property sales through 
incentives for development.  This is not what incentives are intended for and may be what is being at-
tempted by some parties.  
 
Staff opinion on these properties is that they are not being sold at market rates, and recent arms length 
transactions would indicate that the owners will still have significantly lower to go before reaching par-
ity with what the market can bear for new investment.  
 
The property owners propose to contribute $2000 each for the production of sell sheets and TIF analy-
sis.  TIF analysis has now been completed, and as such, only sell sheets are needed to be produced.  
This expense can and should remain with the property owners, as the Village has/is transacting our two 
properties at market rates. 
 
The Village will need to utilize this space more effectively to create a sense of place in the Downtown 
which is not full of vacant parcels.  I have tentatively discussed a plan of attack with members of the 
economic development committee which  
 
I am asking that the full $40,000 be made available to create an incubator space on the Braun proper-
ty, and to invest in a community currency to promote vertical economic integration in Sister Bay.  We 
would utilize this space for a seasonal market of a semi-permanent nature, fostering the next generation 
of merchants in Sister Bay.  These monies would be under the purview of the Economic Development 
Committee for these purposes, with final appropriation authority resting with them following this Board 
Action.  We would operate this as a special revenue fund, and if grown large enough, an enterprise 
fund.  I would like to explore the possibility of using this as a public education/entrepreneurship train-
ing facility for Sister Bay/Door County Businesses in conjunction with SBAA and our Technical Col-
lege.   

36

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


 
There are additional pieces of this situation that I am not at liberty to discuss at this time, and hope that 
you have enough trust in me to move your community forward in a positive fashion.  
 
 
   

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



The Village plans to construct a 650’ beach expansion along Waterfront Park.  This pro-
ject is complex and rather unique in nature, incorporating water, wastewater, stormwater and land-
scape engineering principles into it’s design.  Relatively simple sounding items such as sand placement 
may become enormously expensive for the Village in future years if it is not done correctly the first 
time.  Smithgroup JJR is the engineering firm that designed this beach expansion proposal, and utilizing 
them for site and contract administration would be a sound investment of public funds to ensure that 
corners are not cut by contractors, and that specs are followed throughout the project. 
 
Example: Stone not meeting spec used in breakwater (breakwater cost approximately $350,000).  In 
freeze-thaw cycles, the stone deteriorates after 35 years resulting in partial loss of the breakwater, 
beach sand, and erosion of the embankment.  Lawsuits may follow from adjacent property owners. 
 
   

44

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


September 22, 2014 
 
Zeke Johnson, Village Administrator 
Village of Sister Bay 
2383 Maple Drive 
Sister Bay, WI  54234 
 
Re: Proposal for Professional Services 

Sister Bay Beach Expansion 
 
Dear Zeke, 
 
The following letter modifies the existing Professional Services Contract between SmithGroupJJR (“SGJJR”) and the 
Village of Sister Bay (the “Client”) for the referenced project dated June 24, 2013.   
 
Additional Services include the addition of up to four additional site visits to observe and comment on construction-
related issues.  This will increase the total number of construction progress meetings/site visits from 8 to 12.  We 
anticipate these visits will occur prior to July 1, 2015. 
 
Compensation 
 
Additional Services described in this letter shall be compensated at hourly rate fees plus expenses for a limiting fee of 
$10,880.  Additional visits can be made at the request of the Client for a fee of $2,720 per visit. 
 
This document will serve as an agreement between us, and you may indicate your acceptance by signing in the space 
provided below and returning one (1) signed copy for our files. 

 
     
SmithGroupJJR (Signature)  Client (Signature)  
 
 
     
(Printed name and title)  (Printed name and title)  
 
 
     
Date  Date 
 

45



The Village has planned for an expansion of the Sister Bay Beach for a number of years, 
going back at least as far as 2009 with the adoption of it’s first CORP.  The Beach Expansion bids were 
rejected last year due to cost considerations.  This round of bidding was more favorable, with Death’s 
Door Marine placing the low bid.  The Village is also aided in this round of bidding with a letter of in-
tent from the DNR to fund $489,285 of the project.  Staff asks that the Board preauthorize a 5% over-
run in the amount of $57,526 in order to handle unexpected items in the construction process. 
 
   

46

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Page 1 of 7  

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between  The Village of Sister Bay (“Owner”) and

      (“Contractor”).

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Work is generally described as follows:   

A. Marine work consisting of coastal and upland structure demolition, construction of a 165-foot 
long breakwater using salvaged sheet pile and stone, earth moving and sand placement for 
creation of 48,000 square-foot beach.   

B. Upland construction consisting of wall construction using salvaged stone, site grading, 
landscaping, and installation of new storm and sanitary sewers and appurtenances. 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part 
is generally described as above: 

ARTICLE 3 – OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE 

3.01 The Project has been designed by SmithGroupJJR (Engineer), which is to act as Owner’s 
representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned 
to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness for 
final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.  

4.02 Dates for Substantial Completion and Final Payment  

A. The Work will be substantially completed on or before May 21, 2015, and completed and ready 
for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions on or before 
June 4, 2015. 

47



Page 2 of 7  

4.02 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above 
and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified 
in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of 
the General Conditions. The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties 
involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the 
Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and 
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty), Contractor shall 
pay Owner $500 for each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 above for 
Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. After Substantial Completion, 
if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract 
Time or any proper extension thereof granted by Owner, Contractor shall pay Owner $500 for 
each day that expires after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 above for completion and 
readiness for final payment until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, attached hereto 
as an exhibit. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General 
Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed as provided in the General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below. All such 
payments will be measured by the schedule of values established as provided in Paragraph 
2.07.A of the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of 
units completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the General 
Requirements. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the 
percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously 
made and less such amounts as Engineer may determine or Owner may withhold, including 
but not limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with Paragraph 14.02 of the General 
Conditions. 

a. Five percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has 
been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress 
of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the character 
and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, there will be no 
additional retainage; and 

48



Page 3 of 7  

2. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to Contractor to 98 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts as 
Engineer shall determine in accordance with Paragraph 14.02.B.5 of the General 
Conditions and less 100 percent of Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be 
completed or corrected as shown on the tentative list of items to be completed or corrected 
attached to the certificate of Substantial Completion.  

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the 
General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by 
Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 14.07. 

ARTICLE 7 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

7.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other related 
data identified in the Bidding Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, 
and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and 
Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities), if any, that 
have been identified in Paragraph SC-4.02 of the Supplementary Conditions as containing 
reliable "technical data," and (2) reports and drawings of Hazardous Environmental Conditions, 
if any, at the Site that have been identified in Paragraph SC-4.06 of the Supplementary 
Conditions as containing reliable "technical data." 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor; information commonly known 
to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained 
from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings 
identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, 
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by 
Contractor, including any specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction expressly required by the Contract Documents; and (3) Contractor’s safety 
precautions and programs.   

F. Contractor does not consider that further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, 
studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 

49



Page 4 of 7  

Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract 
Documents. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the 
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 
terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

8.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to _7_, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

3. Payment bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

4. Other bonds (pages       to      , inclusive). 

a.       (pages       to      , inclusive). 

b.       (pages       to      , inclusive). 

c.       (pages       to      , inclusive). 

5. General Conditions (pages 1 to 62, inclusive). 

6. Supplementary Conditions (pages 008000-1 to 008000-7, inclusive). 

7. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

8. Drawings consisting of 16 sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: “Sister 
Bay Beach Expansion, Village of Sister Bay Wisconsin 

9. Addenda (numbers       to      , inclusive). 

10. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages       to      , inclusive). 

50



Page 5 of 7  

b. Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award (pages       to 
     , inclusive). 

11. [The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Agreement and are not attached hereto: 

a. Notice to Proceed (pages 1 to 1, inclusive). 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly 
noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
Paragraph 3.04 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 9 – MISCELLANEOUS 

9.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the 
Supplementary Conditions. 

9.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding 
on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, 
specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may 
not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may 
be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

9.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents. 

9.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any 
Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be 

51



Page 6 of 7  

valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be 
reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable 
provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

9.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract 
execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence 
the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to 
establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner 
of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or 
without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, 
non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or 
their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution 
of the Contract. 

52



 

Page 7 of 7  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  Counterparts have been 
delivered to Owner and Contractor. All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or have been 
identified by Owner and Contractor or on their behalf. 

 
This Agreement will be effective on       (which is the Effective Date of the Agreement).   
 

 
   
OWNER:  CONTRACTOR 

             

By:        By:        

Title:        Title:       

  
 (If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, 
or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority 
to sign.) 

Attest:        Attest:       

Title:        Title:       

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

             

             

             

  License No.: 
                                                 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence  
of authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, 
attach evidence of authority to sign and resolution
or other documents authorizing execution  
of this Agreement.) 

 

           (Where applicable) 

NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other 
jurisdictions where applicable or required.

 Agent for service of process: 

       
 

53



Notice of Award 
 

 Date:  __________________ 
 
Project: 

Owner: Owner's Contract No.: 

Contract: Engineer's Project No.: 

Bidder: 

Bidder's Address: [send Notice of Award Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested] 

 

 

 You are notified that your Bid dated       for the above Contract has been considered.  You are the 
Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for       
 

 [Indicate total Work, alternates, or sections of Work awarded.] 

 The Contract Price of your Contract is             Dollars ($     ). 

[Insert appropriate data if unit prices are used.  Change language for cost-plus contracts.] 

       copies of the proposed Contract Documents (except Drawings) accompany this Notice of Award. 

       sets of the Drawings will be delivered separately or otherwise made available to you immediately. 

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within [15] days of the date you receive this 
Notice of Award. 

  1. Deliver to the Owner [     ] fully executed counterparts of the Contract Documents. 

  2. Deliver with the executed Contract Documents the Contract security [Bonds] as specified in the 
Instructions to Bidders (Article 20), General Conditions (Paragraph 5.01), and Supplementary 
Conditions (Paragraph SC-5.01). 

  3. Other conditions precedent: 
        

    
 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in 
default, annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Contract Documents. 

    
  Owner 
  By:   
  Authorized Signature 
     
  Title 
Copy to Engineer 
 

54



Notice to Proceed 
 

Date:  _________________ 
 
Project: 

Owner: Owner's Contract No.: 

Contract: Engineer's Project No.: 

Contractor: 

Contractor's Address: [send Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested] 

 

 

 

 You are notified that the Contract Times under the above Contract will commence to run 
on     .  On or before that date, you are to start performing your obligations under the Contract 
Documents.  In accordance with Article 4 of the Agreement, the date of Substantial Completion 
is     , and the date of readiness for final payment is       [(or) the number of days to achieve 
Substantial Completion is      , and the number of days to achieve readiness for final payment is 
     ]. 
 
 Before you may start any Work at the Site, Paragraph 2.01.B of the General Conditions 
provides that you and Owner must each deliver to the other (with copies to Engineer and other 
identified additional insureds and loss payees) certificates of insurance which each is required to 
purchase and maintain in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
 Also, before you may start any Work at the Site, you must: 
 
__________________________________  [add other requirements]. 

   

  Owner 

  Given by: 

  Authorized Signature  

   

  Title 

   

  Date 

Copy to Engineer 

55



Page 1 of 3 
 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business): 
              
              
              
OWNER (Name and Address):  
         
         
         
CONTRACT    
 Effective Date of Agreement:         
 Amount:         
 Description (Name and Location):       
    
BOND    
 Bond Number:         

 
Date (Not earlier than Effective Date of 
Agreement):        

 Amount:       
 Modifications to this Bond Form:       
    
Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause 
this Performance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative. 
    
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY  
     
       (Seal)   (Seal)
 Contractor's Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal 
 
 By:        By:        
  Signature  Signature (Attach Power of Attorney) 
    
                 
  Print Name  Print Name 
    
                 
  Title  Title 
    
 Attest:        Attest:        
  Signature  Signature  
      
                
 Title  Title 
 
Note:  Provide execution by additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary. 

56



Page 2 of 3 
 

Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns to Owner for the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
1. If Contractor performs the Contract, Surety and Contractor have no obligation under this Bond, except to 
participate in conferences as provided in Paragraph 2.1. 
 
2. If there is no Owner Default, Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise after: 

2.1 Owner has notified Contractor and Surety, at the addresses described in Paragraph 9 below, that 
Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default and has requested and attempted to arrange a 
conference with Contractor and Surety to be held not later than 15 days after receipt of such notice 
to discuss methods of performing the Contract. If Owner, Contractor, and Surety agree, Contractor 
shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive 
Owner’s right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default; and 

2.2 Owner has declared a Contractor Default and formally terminated Contractor’s right to complete 
the Contract. Such Contractor Default shall not be declared earlier than 20 days after Contractor 
and Surety have received notice as provided in Paragraph 2.1; and 

2.3 Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to: 
1. Surety in accordance with the terms of the Contract; or 
2. Another contractor selected pursuant to Paragraph 3.3 to perform the Contract. 
 

3. When Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 2, Surety shall promptly, and at Surety’s expense, 
take one of the following actions: 
 

3.1 Arrange for Contractor, with consent of Owner, to perform and complete the Contract; or 
3.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Contract itself, through its agents or through independent 

contractors; or 
3.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to Owner for a contract 

for performance and completion of the Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution 
by Owner and contractor selected with Owner’s concurrence, to be secured with performance and 
payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Contract, and 
pay to Owner the amount of damages as described in Paragraph 5 in excess of the Balance of the 
Contract Price incurred by Owner resulting from Contractor Default; or 

3.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor, and 
with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:   

1. After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to Owner and, as soon as 
practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefor to Owner; or 

2. Deny liability in whole or in part and notify Owner citing reasons therefor. 
 

4. If Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 3 with reasonable promptness, Surety shall be 
deemed to be in default on this Bond 15 days after receipt of an additional written notice from Owner to 
Surety demanding that Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and Owner shall be entitled to enforce 
any remedy available to Owner. If Surety proceeds as provided in Paragraph 3.4, and Owner refuses the 
payment tendered or Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice Owner shall be 
entitled to enforce any remedy available to Owner. 
 
5. After Owner has terminated Contractor’s right to complete the Contract, and if Surety elects to act under 
Paragraph 3.1, 3.2, or 3.3 above, then the responsibilities of Surety to Owner shall not be greater than those 
of Contractor under the Contract, and the responsibilities of Owner to Surety shall not be greater than those 
of Owner under the Contract. To the limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by Owner 
of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Contract, Surety is obligated 
without duplication for: 

57



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
5.1 The responsibilities of Contractor for correction of defective Work and completion of the Contract; 
5.2 Additional legal, design professional, and delay costs resulting from Contractor’s Default, and 

resulting from the actions of or failure to act of Surety under Paragraph 3; and 
5.3 Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Contract, actual damages 

caused by delayed performance or non-performance of Contractor. 
 

6. Surety shall not be liable to Owner or others for obligations of Contractor that are unrelated to the 
Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such 
unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than Owner 
or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors. 
 
7. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to Contract or to related 
subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations. 
 
8. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent 
jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located, and shall be instituted within 
two years after Contractor Default or within two years after Contractor ceased working or within two years 
after Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the 
provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to 
sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable. 
 
9. Notice to Surety, Owner, or Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature 
page. 
 
10. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory requirement in the location where the 
Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory requirement shall be 
deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be deemed 
incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common 
law bond. 
 
11. Definitions. 
 

11.1 Balance of the Contract Price:  The total amount payable by Owner to Contractor under the 
Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to Contractor of any 
amounts received or to be received by Owner in settlement of insurance or other Claims for 
damages to which Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on 
behalf of Contractor under the Contract.  

11.2 Contract:  The agreement between Owner and Contractor identified on the signature page, 
including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.  

11.3 Contractor Default:  Failure of Contractor, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform 
or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Contract. 

11.4 Owner Default:  Failure of Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay Contractor 
as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or otherwise comply with the other terms 
thereof. 

 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY – (Name, Address and Telephone) 
Surety Agency or Broker: 
Owner’s Representative (Engineer or other party): 
 

58



The Village has operated the TKH Ice rink as a special revenue fund for years, and has 
relied on volunteers to run the rink.  Last year, the Village took the first step in professionalizing the 
operations of the Rink, and of expanding operations and offerings to create a sense of place in Sister 
Bay in the Winter Time.  With the addition of the sledding hill in 2015, the Sports Complex will be-
come “THE” spot to be during the winter.  The General fund has subsidized the TKH budget $5000 
annually.  This year, we will begin a 3 year transition of weaning TKH off of general fund revenues; it 
will begin with a large influx of approximately $16,000 to assist in advertising, staffing, and the initia-
tion of 2 new events; New Years and Valentines Day. 
 
The Parks Pass will work as follows: 
Sister Bay Residents/Property Owners will receive a notice and physical card to be used at Sister Bay 
recreational facilities.  This will also be use to identify residents for discounts at our Marina and other 
facilities.  Resident Parks Pass holders will be entitled to free admission to the Ice Rink (as well as their 
families/car load) 
 
Day Passes: 
$3 Individual/Day 
$6 Car Load/Family/Day 
$10 League Season Pass- Broomball, Hockey, ect… 
$25 Individual + 3 guests Season Pass 
 
The resident passes will be mailed out to property owners/residents of record.  TKH Staff will integrate 
into their County Wide Marketing Efforts at least 5 off site vendors to sell passes (with a 10% commis-
sion for the vendor) to visitors headed to Sister Bay.  
 
These monies will be used, in part, to take advantage of TKH Staff talent by starting a youth Broomball 
league, Youth Hockey League, Sledding Hill races/competitions, and snowmobile races.  TKH Ice Rink 
and the Sister Bay Sports Complex will be talked about throughout the County, and will be the envy of 
our neighbors.  
   

59

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


                        
2015 VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

SPORTS COMPLEX/TKH ICE 

RINK USE FEES 

 
Individual Use Fee:  $3.00 Per Day 

“Car Load”/Family Fee - $6.00 Per Day 

Organized League Member Seasonal Fee:    

$10.00      

Individual Season Pass:  $25.00  

 

60



PA
RK

 P
AS

S61



This pass entitles a Village of Sister 
Bay taxpaying family (grandparents, 
parents, and children) to free use of the 
following facilities: TKH Ice Rink, Sister 
Bay Beach, Dog Park, Softball Field, 
Soccer Field, and Tennis Courts. 
For rental of other facilities please call 
920-854-4118

62



Preliminary research indicates that the DCVB initiated Strategic Community Partnership 
funding as a means by which to foster buy in amongst the local community tourism promotion organi-
zations around the time of the creation of the room tax.  These monies total several hundred thousands 
of dollars per year and are used by Door County community business associations/tourism promotion 
entities to bolster their budgets for a variety of policy objectives.  SBAA receives approximately 
$37,000 in funding from the DCVB, making this their second largest line item contribution behind the 
Village’s $50,000 “support to other organizations” line item.  
   

63

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


64



The Village Budget has been examined and recommended by the various oversight 
committees that oversee the WWTP, Utilities, Marina, TKH, Administration, General Fund, Parks, Debt 
Service, and TIF budgets.  There is a slight increase in levy due largely to net new construction, and an 
increase in water fees per our biannual rate setting process. 
   

65

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Traditional municipal financing arrangements required that municipal entities sought 
General Obligation or Revenue Bonds through financial advisors and bond council in order for inves-
tors to receive federal and state tax benefits from investing in municipal debt.  This arrangement no 
longer is valid, as market interest rates are substantially lower from retail banks than they are from the 
muni market.  Even municipalities that are rated highly by bond agencies are borrowing higher than 
from retail banks.  The typical cost for bond council is $30,000 per issue or more, with interest being 
spread according to the political/financial needs of the borrowing municipality.  Sister Bay authorized 
$15,000,000 in debt back in 2005 in order to receive favorable status before state level legislative 
changes took effect.  Our total obligations from all sources is $22,547,863, with $15,560,000 in prin-
cipal and $6,987,863 in interest until 2031.  Our Bond call dates are in December of 2015, with ap-
proximately $2,850,000 at 4.35% interest callable at that time.  We will save approximately $180,000 
in interest over 5 years by calling these bonds and refinancing these with Baylake Loans at roughly 2%. 
   

66

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Traditional municipal management places a great deal of responsibility with the adminis-
trator/manager.  Asset disposal/development is traditionally one of those tasks.  The Village has done a 
poor job of managing its inventory of assets, and of disposal thereof when appropriate.  The goal of our 
government should be to maximize return on assets and investments to the taxpayers; an ultimate goal 
would be to develop a “sovereign wealth fund” or “Village Bank” which would fund operations 
through investments alone.  These ideas are not without precedence.  The Bank of North Dakota pro-
vides a substantial economic development engine to that state, and sovereign wealth funds around the 
world provide massive amounts of operational revenue to national level governments. 
 
   

67

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution Authorizing Sale of Property  
No 298-102114 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay, by its Board of Trustees, has entered into 

discussions for an agreement for the sale of property approximately .23 acres on the west 
portion of the lot, known as the old Helm’s Cottage Lot on the South Side of Mill Rd, 
Parcel of 181-21-0501A, 2362 Mill Rd to Al and Tara Gokey or their designated entity 
and the balance of the property, approximately .72 acres on the East of the property to 
the Wisconsin Department of Transportation for 6(f) conversion.  The DOT shall be 
responsible for surveying of the land and creation of a certified survey map for 
consideration by the Village of Sister Bay’s Plan Commission and Village Board for 
Adoption.  The Village Administrator shall have authority to verify the correctness of 
the map before adoption by the Village’s legislative bodies; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Village of Sister Bay by its Board of Trustees has agreed to 

sell the following described property, upon the terms and conditions which are 
satisfactory to the Village of Sister Bay, based upon the best negotiated terms that the 
Village Administrator can obtain; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Sister Bay as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described 

property, zoned B-2, to Al and Tara Gokey or their designee (“Gokey”) upon payment by 
Gokey of a negotiated sum, the best of which the Village Administrator can obtain upon 
the following property: 

 
Parcel No. 181-21-0501A: 

 
Approximately .23 acres on the West side of the lot, south of Mill Rd. Commonly 
referred to as the old helm’s cottage property. 

  
2.   The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described 

property to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, upon payment of a sum of 
approximately $383,000, or the best negotiated deal which the Village Administrator can 
obtain upon the following property: 
 

Parcel No. 181-21-0501A: 

 
Approximately .72 acres for the purpose of 6(f) conversion by the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation, the Eastern Portion of that same lot located at 2362 
Mill Rd.   The DOT will request rezoning of the property to P-1, and prepare deed 
restrictions for examination by the Village Attorney suitable for 6(f) conversion.  DOT 
will also, as a condition of this sale, work with the Wisconsin DNR and Village to 
resolve any outstanding Stewardship/6(f) deed restrictions on Waterfront Park Land.  

68



 
2.  The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay authorizes the President 

and Clerk of the Village of Sister Bay to execute conveyance documents to complete 
such transaction and to further execute any extensions, amendments, or modifications  
in the sale documents which are not inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 

 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



Door County Coastal Byway Council
Meeting Minutes – Thursday, September 11th 2014

Time: 8:30 a.m.
Place: Sevastopol Town Hall, 4528 State Highway 57, Sturgeon Bay, WI 54235

Call to Order. Chair Ann Miller called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

Declaration of a Quorum - Adopt agenda. The following Council members were present and
constitute a quorum:
Ann Miller, primary – Town of Liberty Grove
Al Birnschein, primary – Town of Jacksonport
Kriss Schorer, primary – Town of Baileys Harbor
Scott Baker, primary – Village of Sister Bay
Chuck Tice, primary – Town of Sevastopol
Michelle Anderson, primary – Village of Egg Harbor
Beth Hagen, primary – Town of Gibraltar
Also present: Sam Perlman-DCEDC and Linda Wait-recording secretary.

Motion by Kriss and second by Chuck to adopt the agenda, as presented. Motion carried.

Approve minutes. Motion by Michelle and second by Scott to approve the minutes of August 14,
2014. Motion carried.

Treasurer’s Report. Sam reported a current balance of $16,587.72. This includes a $100
contribution from the Door County Land Trust, $30 for interpretive plan purchase and disbursement of
$5.60 for mailing brochures to travel centers. Motion by Kriss and second by Al to approve; motion
carried.

Pending Business

A. DCCB review progress on website updating. Sam passed out a website prototype and has
provided some photos to get started. He also had initial consultations with Dustin and his team
about the creation of an iPhone app (mock-up is password protected). In that the website costs
will be far less than anticipated, Sam asked Dustin to go ahead with a cost estimate for the
iPhone app. After some discussion on the idea, Sam will check with the DCVB to see what
their plans are. The app could be interactive with the website, provide some live history and a
link to the kiosks. Initial cost would be $2,340 plus $104.45 a year for hosting. Motion by
Chuck and second by Scott to start looking for some grants that may apply for an iPhone app.
Ann will check with federal and state. Motion carried.

B. Anclam Park re-dedication and brochure racks/delivery estimates. Kriss reported there is no
dedication planned as yet, maybe wait until spring. She did find some brochure holders; Beth
offered to provide some information on weather-resistant outdoor holders.

84



DOOR COUNTY COASTAL BYWAY COUNCIL
Minutes – September 11, 2014

2

C. Adopt-A-Highway – discussion/possible action. Sam thought application was made through
John Kolodziej at Door County Highway Department. Hold off for now.

D. Update on FHWA & Nat. Byway Program/grants status from Congressman Reid Ribble. Ann
did not have a chance to call but will do so and see if anything is available.

E. Update on requests for hard copies of I-Plan for purchase by general public. There have been a
few requests; cost would be $35. Hold off for now. They can view on the website.

New Business

Correspondence. None.

Agenda items for next meeting / suggestions.
▪ Grants for iPhone app 
▪ Beth – covered brochure holders 
▪ Shutterfly and similar for printing IP 
▪ Upcoming parades – Harvest Fest, Pumpkin Patch, Fall Fest, Jacksonport Thanksgiving Day. 

Looking for volunteers; Scott will check with Zeke.

Future Meeting Dates. Thursday, October 9th 2014 - 8:30 a.m. at Gibraltar/Fish Creek.

Payment of any Bills. None.

Adjourn. Motion by Al and second by Beth to adjourn. Motion carried and meeting adjourned at
9:18 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Wait, recording secretary
[draft 9/15/2014]

185 East Walnut Street, Sturgeon Bay WI 54235
Telephone: (920) 743-3113

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
September 19, 2014 

 
The meeting was called to order September 19, 2014 at 8:00 am by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss  
 
In attendance Chris Hecht, Bill Randall  
 
A motion was made by Frank Forkert to approve the agenda, seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed 
with no discussion. 
 
Meeting was adjourned to closed session.  

Roll call Louis Covotsos, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss, Chris Hecht, Bill Randall.  
Closed Session Adjourn and open meeting recalled to order. 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss. 
In attendance Chris Hecht, Bill Randall  

 
There is no action required from the closed session. 
 
A motion was made by Scott Baker to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, seconded by Pat 
Duffy. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
There was no public input. 
 
Discussion Items: 

1. Chief’s Report 
a. Runs are up. We have the same number of fire calls year to day as all of last year. 
b. The Sister Bay Liberty Grove Fire Department takes a significantly different position on 

flooding. We will come out to help you. Other departments will not. The three 
precedents of the fire department are: life safety, property preservation, and incident 
stabilization.  

c. SCBA Grant is finished. We are waiting to close it out. 
d. The Communication Grant is in progress. We are behind schedule, but the contractors 

say it will be finished on time. 
e. No changes to the MABAS system are planned. We will be going live January 1, 2015. 
f. Hose testing was finished about 3 weeks ago. 1200 feet of LDH and 1200 -1500 feet of 

regular hose failed. LDH is about $6.00 a foot and regular $4-5.00 foot. Will have to 
order $10-15,000.00 of hose. 

g. Next week is pump test and DOT inspection. 
h. Active 911 is now active. We will still get the notification on our pagers. On our phone 

we will get a message and maps to the location of the call. It also shows the location of 
the people who are responding. 

i. We are working on selling Engine 7. It is on loan to Gibraltar.  
j. Sometime this month we will start working on selling one of the tankers. 
k. The open house was this week-end and it was very successful. We estimate over 250 

people. We are looking at holding one next year at the north station. 

95



l. Marina Fest was profitable but less than last year.   
2. Clerk/Treasurer Report 

a. A list of checks issued since the last meeting was passed out. 
b. The year to date budget numbers were passed out. 
c. A list of calls since the last meeting was passed out. 
d. A motion was made by Pat Duffy to approve the treasurers’ report, seconded by Nancy 

Goss. Motion passed with no discussion 
3. Compensation, hourly and stipends  Discussion/Action 

a. Fire Board approved new compensation plan. 
4. 2015 Budget  

a. Operation Budget  Discussion/Action 
i. An adjustment to the budget will be done based on the recommendation of the 

board to increas compensation. The new numbers will be forwarded to the 
board to be taken to the village and town. 

b. CIP Budget Discussion/Action 
i. The CIP budget was discussed. 

ii. A motion was made by Pat Duffy to approve the expenditure for a brush truck in 
2016 with planning to be done in 2015, seconded by Louis Covotsos. Motion 
passed with no further discussion. 

iii. The CIP will be taken to the village and town for approval and consideration of 
where to keep the funds. 

5. Fire District – Discussion 
a. There will be a meeting next Monday.  

6. Set Date for Next Meeting 
a. Tentative date October 6, 2014 8:00 AM if required for Budget 
b. December 8, 2014 8:00 AM 

 

A motion was made by Pat Duffy to adjourn, seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no 
discussion. 
 
Submitted by 
Bill Randall 
Fire Board Clerk 
 

96



 
 
 

Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
October 15, 2014 

 
The meeting was called to order October 15, 2014 at 8:00 am by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Frank Forkert , Scott Baker, Nancy Goss  
 
In attendance Chris Hecht, Bill Randall  
 
A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to approve the agenda, seconded by Scott Baker. Motion passed 
with no discussion. 
 
A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, seconded by 
Scott Baker. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
There was no public input. 
 
Discussion Items: 

1. Chief’s Report 
a. A list of current calls was passed out. Runs are up.  
b. We are having no luck it trying to sell engine 7.  
c. The tanker has been delayed. We have a penalty clause in the contract and will receive 

$75.00 a day for each day it is late. 
d. SCBA Grant has been completed and all of the funds have been expended and the close 

out paper work has been submitted. 
e. The Communication Grant period of performance ends today, October 15, 2014.  

Yesterday, we were able to page on all frequencies. The system made the deadline. We 
now have to reprogram all of the pagers. We have asked for the balance of the fund 
from FEMA. The FEMA funds of $1,000,000 and the county matching funds of $125,000 
have been expended. We are now into the county’s part of the funds. 

f. There will be MABAS training tonight and we plan to go live Jan 1, 2015. 
g. Last week was pump test and DOT inspection. All of the trucks passed the pump test. 

Several of the trucks have maintenance issues. 
 

2. Clerk/Treasurer Report 
a. A list of calls since the last meeting was passed out. 
b. A list of checks issued since the last meeting was passed out. 
c. The year to date budget report was passed out. 
d. A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to approve the treasurers’ report, seconded by 

Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no discussion 
 

3. Grant Fund – Discussion 

97



a. The sale of the used equipment replaced by the grant was placed in the grant fund and 
there is no need to budget funds in the 2015 budget. 
   

 
 

4. Fire District – Discussion 
a. Most of the work in creating a fire district has been on political and financial issues. There 

are some concerns that the mode of operation in the departments and the culture 
difference of the departments are a problem. 

b. Each of the involved communities should sign a letter committing to the district. 
c. We feel that a provisional board of directors should be set up. That does not include the 

chiefs. The board will develop a mission plan, a vision statement and SOP for the district.  
 

5. Set Date for Next Meeting 
a. December 8, 2014 8:00 AM 

 

A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to adjourn, seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no 
discussion. 
 
Submitted by 
Bill Randall 
Fire Board Clerk 
 

 

 

98



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting September 15, 2014 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by 
Virginia Phelan at 1:00 P.M. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Allen Strack, Frank Forkert, Henry Timm, Betty Curzon, 
Margot Warch and Ralph Blankenburg. A new member for the Village of Sister Bay has not 
been appointed. 
 
Public Input:  None 
 
Review and Approve the Minutes of the August 12, 2014 Meeting: 
Frank Forkert moved and Margot Warch seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the 
August 12, 2014 meeting. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Review and Payment of the Bills: 

Midsummer Music Refund of Deposit $50.00 
Hammersmith TV P.A. for Garden Opening $20.00 
Wisconsin Public Service Electric $793.10 
Lakeshores Landscape Repair & Install Sprinklers $936.34 
Baylake Bank Cash Fund for Book sale $350.00 
Marina Fest 10% for Book sales $256.50 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $1,560.00 
Curzon Electric Ballast $36.99 
Jungwirth Ace Hardware Urinal Screens/Book sale Supplies $54.42 
Jeffery Ward Construction Washroom repairs/Install Hinges $288.56 
Frontier Telephone $123.22 
Door County Library Book Cart $432.40 
Total 

 
$4,901.53 

 
Allen Strack moved and Henry Timm  seconded the motion to approve the payment of the bills.  
The motion passed 5-0. 
 

Budget: 

Ralph Blankenburg Reviewed the proposed Budget for 2015.  The comparison we used for 
2014 was actual through August of this year and September through December of last year.  
The $7,500 listed as Commission payment is the landscaping expense that is being covered 
from the donations account.  Assumption was made that propane consumption will be the same 
as last year.  Building maintenance was not changed since the building is getting older and the 
furnace and air conditioners are getting older.   
Margot Warch moved and Allen Strack seconded a motion to approve the budget. The motion 
passed 5-0.  
 

 

99



Librarians Report 

Statistics are as follows to compare July 2013 with July 2014. 
 
Circulation: 
2014: 7,355  YTD: 44,176 
2013: 8,047  YTD 49,219 
 
System-wide circ. 
2014: 350,969  YTD: 2,836,395 
2013: 383,488  YTD 3,030,111 
 
Library Visits: 
2014: 6,830 
2013: 7,540 
 
 
Programs: 
2014: 1 Adult; 5 Children   Attended by 38 Adults,   63 Children   101 Totals. 
2013: 1 Adult; 6 Children   Attended by 49 Adults   67 Children    116  Totals. 
 
Computer Use Public: 
2014:   910 People for a total of  23,561 Minutes 
2013: 1,110 People for a total of 27,910 Minutes 
 
Wireless: 
There are no valid statistics for the wireless use for 2014, so cannot compare with that of a year 
ago. 
 
Overdrive: 
2014: 198 E-books Users  64 Audio book Users 
2013: 201 E-books Users  54 Audio book Users 
 
It's a bit of a relief to see an end to the summer of 2014 with its odd weather patterns and very 
dry period.  Libraries and shops have more traffic when the weather is rainy!  (but not like we 
experienced Thursday into Friday of last week)  I included system-wide circulation statistics so 
you could see that the drop in checkouts is everywhere, not just Sister Bay/Liberty Grove.  It is 
somewhat of a concern, but Becca Berger doesn't seem to be worried.  People's information 
needs are changing and, unfortunately, they don't always have to physically visit a library to 
meet those needs.  We need to trust in Becca's leadership in these changing times. 
 
On 9/11 when all U.S. flags were supposed to be at half mast, ours remained at the top of the 
pole.  Does anyone know what happened to our agreement with the Village crew next door? It 
was my understanding that they were supposed to deal with our flag when there was an 
occasion to fly it at half mast.   
 
I've asked Curt Wessel to give me a price on a DVD cabinet for the children's area.  It will be 
similar to those he made for our music CD collection.  I will bring the proposal to you when I 
receive it from Curt. 
 
Many thanks to Ralph and Kathy Blankenburg for all their work on the Marina Fest Book sale!  
They spent many hours sorting and organizing in the weeks before Labor Day and it paid off 

100



with many compliments from people attending the sale.  It also helped to have the boxes of 
books at the Village Hall the evening before, as we were able to organize before opening the 
doors on the day of the sale.  Is the sale something we want to continue?  Could we ask the 
school kids to do the entire thing?  We could offer them the shed for a collection point for sale 
items.  The physical demands of handling boxes of books are getting to be too much for many 
of our past volunteers.  This may be the time for a younger organization with motivated 
volunteers to take over.  
 
Marina Fest:  

Ralph reported that the book sale had receipts of $2,565 and that after giving the Village 
$256.50 our net profit will be $2,308.50 plus donations of $205.85 for a total of $2,514.35.  The 
points covered in Betty Curzon's report were discussed.  It would be hard for Mike Scoville to 
take over the whole project, plus it is a money maker for the library and provides for many 
extras that the budget doesn't cover.  Ralph Blankenburg said he and Kathy would help next 
year, but could not run the library's part of the project.  Ralph reported that he was told that the 
Village would like the library to stay in the Village Hall in the future.  The commission will be 
looking for someone to be in charge for next year. Ralph thanked Margot Warch and Glenna 
Peters for their help sorting all the books before the event. 
Allen Strack moved that the Commission split the $2514.35 with the Middle School children and 
Virginia Phelan seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Library Garden: 
Virginia Phelan volunteered to look into the ordering the plaques for the donated benches and 
tables. 
 

Next Meeting: 

October 14 meeting will only be held if needed. 
November 11 @ 1:00 P.M. will be the next meeting 
 
Adjourn: 
It was moved by Margot Warch and seconded by Frank Forkert to adjourn at 2:15 P. M.  The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 

101



 

Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library 

 

2015 Annual Budget  

       

     
2015 Budget 

 
Income 

      Operating Income 

     

 
Community Room Use 

    

 
Interest Earned 

    Cost Share: 

     

 

Commission Payment 
 

7,500.00 
 

 
Town of Liberty Grove 

  
30,422.00 

 

 
Village of Sister Bay 

  
30,422.00 

 
Total Operating Income 

  
68,344.00 

 
Expense 

      

 
Bank Deposit Box 

  
45.00 

 Insurance 

      

 
General / Liability 

  
375.00 

 

 
Property 

   
738.00 

 

 
Workers Compenstation Ins. 

 
276.00 

 
Total Insurance 

   
1,434.00 

 Operations 

     

 
Audit 

   
1,800.00 

 

 
Building Equipment 

  
330.00 

 

 
Building Maintanence Person 

 
590.00 

 

 
Building Repairs 

  
4,000.00 

 

 
Cleaning 

     

  
Carpets 

  
1,500.00 

 

  
General 

  
14,500.00 

 

  
Supplies 

  
510.00 

 

  
Windows 

  
580.00 

 

 
Total Cleaning 

  
17,090.00 

 

 
Contingency 

  
0.00 

 

 
Landscpe & Lawn Maintenance 

 
8,400.00 

 

 
Office Supplies 

  
500.00 

 

 
Postage 

   
115.00 

 

 
Snow Shoveling 

  
1,300.00 

 
Total Opertions 

   
34,125.00 

 Payroll Expenses 

     

 
Clerk/Treasurer 

  
4,500.00 

 

 
Commissioners 

  
3,200.00 

 

 
Payroll Expenses - Other 

 
680.00 

 
Total Payroll Expenses 

  
8,380.00 

 Utilities 

      

 
Electric 

   
9,500.00 

 

 
Fire Protection Services 

 
1,825.00 

 

102



 
Sprinkler Water 

  
440.00 

 

 
Propane 

   
9,040.00 

 

 
Telephone 

   
1,475.00 

 

 
Water & Sewer 

  
2,125.00 

 
Total Utilities 

   
24,405.00 

 
Total Expense 

   
68,344.00 

 

        

103



 1 

MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 3 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 4 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 5 
 6 
The September 16, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee was called to order by Chairperson 7 
John Clove at 2:01 P.M. 8 
 9 
Present:  Chairperson Clove, and members Shane Solomon, Pat Duffy, and Fuzzy Sunstrom.  10 
 11 
Excused:  Kevin Roberts and Jeff Flegel 12 
 13 
Others:  Jim Robinson and Jeff Cronk 14 
 15 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Wendy Tatzel, and 16 
Administrative Assistant Janal Suppanz. 17 
 18 
Approval of the agenda: 19 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the agenda for the September 16, 20 
2014 meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 21 
 22 
Approval of minutes as published: 23 
As to the minutes for the August 14, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee: 24 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the August 14, 2014 25 
meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 28 
Clove asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. Jim Robinson noted 29 
that it is his understanding that on the night Marina employees discovered that one of his boats 30 
was untied Peder Nelson had the same thing happen with his schooner. 31 
 32 
Business Items: 33 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding the SBAA’s request that the Marina Committee donate a stay 34 
at the Boathouse for the grand prize in the “Seeking Sven” Scavenger Hunt; Consider a 35 
motion to take action if required: 36 
Paige Funkhouser, the SBAA Coordinator, requested that the Marina Committee once again 37 
consider offering the grand prize winner of the “Seeking Sven” Scavenger Hunt the opportunity 38 
to stay at the Boathouse during the shoulder-season.   During discussion Clove noted that it is 39 
very difficult to locate anything about the Marina or the Boathouse on the SBAA’s website. He 40 
also noted that it is his understanding that the Marina did pay SBAA membership fees but also 41 
paid separate advertising fees for the Boathouse. The Committee members were amenable to 42 
once again granting Funkhouser’s request but indicated that they believe it would only be fair 43 
to ask that advertising for the “Seeking Sven” contest and the fact that the grand prize will be a 44 
stay at the Boathouse be included in next year’s SBAA brochure and on all “Seeking Sven” 45 
promotional materials.  46 
 47 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the Marina Committee will offer the 48 
grand prize winner of the “Seeking Sven” Scavenger Hunt the opportunity to stay at the 49 

104



Minutes of the September 16, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

-2- 

 

Boathouse during the shoulder-season on the condition that advertising for the “Seeking Sven” 1 
contest and the fact that the grand prize will be a stay at the Boathouse be included in next 2 
year’s SBAA brochure and on all “Seeking Sven” promotional materials. Motion carried – All 3 
ayes. 4 
 5 
Item No. 2. Discussion on the 2015 budget; Consider a motion to take action if required: 6 
A copy of the proposed 2015 budget for the Marina was included in the meeting packets and 7 
the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process the 8 
following decisions were made: 9 
 10 

   The Committee members believe the projected slip rental estimates are acceptable and 11 
will leave the decision as to whether slips should be rented on a seasonal or transient 12 
basis up to Tatzel. 13 

 14 

   The possibility of converting the ground level of the Boathouse into a restaurant or some 15 
other type of commercial establishment will be addressed at length at a future 16 
meeting(s).  17 
 18 

    The Marketing and Publicity line item shall be increased to $8,000. 19 
 20 

     $1,500 shall be budgeted for a special event(s) for Marina tenants.  21 
 22 

     On paper this year’s Marina Fest expenses appear to be higher than anticipated. 23 
Jackson will confer with the Finance Director on this issue and see that a detailed 24 
revenue vs. expenses report is prepared. That report will be included in the packets for 25 
a future Marina Committee Meeting.        26 

 27 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the Marina Committee recommends 28 
that the proposed budget for the Sister Bay Marina be approved as amended. Motion carried – 29 
All ayes. 30 
 31 
Item No. 3.  Discussion regarding long term planning for the Marina; Review of the 5 Year 32 
Capital Improvement Plan; and consider a motion to take action if required: 33 
A copy of the proposed 5 Year CIP for the Marina was included in the meeting packets and the 34 
Committee members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process the following 35 
decisions were made:  36 
 37 

   In 2015 a total of $10,000 shall be allocated for the Vehicle – Guest Transport and 38 
Exterior Boathouse Updates Projects. 39 
 40 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the Marina Committee recommends 41 
that the proposed 5 Year CIP which was reviewed at this meeting be approved as amended. 42 
Motion carried – All ayes.  43 
 44 
At 4:06 P.M. Sunstrom indicated that he had another obligation and left the meeting. 45 
 46 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding marina activities with Wendy Tatzel, Marina Manager: 47 
Tatzel gave the following oral report: 48 
 49 

105



Minutes of the September 16, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

-3- 

 

    Revenues from transient slip rentals are up this year. This increase can be attributed to 1 
the fact that more large boats were docked at the Marina. 2 
 3 

    Diagrams depicting A-Dock and B-Dock upgrades were included in the meeting 4 
packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed those documents. It was the 5 
consensus that B-Dock is the most logical location for a fuel dock. This issue will be 6 
addressed at length at a future Marina Committee Meeting(s). 7 
 8 

    There were approximately 1,700 boat launches from the Marina this season. 9 
 10 

    The Marina Office has closed for the season and Tatzel will now only be working on 11 
Tuesdays and Wednesdays. 12 
 13 

    It is her understanding that a professional painter plans on coming to paint the boaters’ 14 
restrooms around the third week of October. The other boaters’ restroom renovations 15 
will be made after the painting project has been completed. She will attempt to find a 16 
professional painter who is willing to paint the doors on the Marina Building, but is not 17 
sure when that will happen as several painters have informed her that they are very, 18 
very busy. She will provide an update on the progress which has been made on both 19 
projects at the next meeting of the Marina Committee. 20 
 21 
Tatzel was asked to see that the professional painter who is hired to paint the doors on 22 
the Marina Building also be asked to touch up the exterior trim on that building.  23 
 24 

   The new Marina sweatshirts and hats have been received and Tatzel will be ordering 25 
new burgees soon. She intends to send out an e-mail concerning the availability of 26 
these items around the holidays.  27 
  28 

   She spoke with Chris Halbur of the DNR concerning the possibility of installing railings 29 
on the launch ramp, and Halbur promised to send her a copy of the applicable 30 
regulations ASAP.   31 

 32 
Jackson noted that employees from Great Lakes TV Seal were up here today and informed Steve 33 
Jacobson, the Utilities Manager, that the outfall pipe by the Marina is actually quite clean. The 34 
testing which was done on the areas where the pipe discharges revealed that the Marina was 35 
also quite clean. The cost to reroute the outfall pipe is approximately $640,000. It was the 36 
consensus that because of cost factors rerouting is simply not an option. Jackson was asked to 37 
investigate the issues related to “gating” and will report his findings at a future meeting.  38 
 39 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 40 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 41 
public funds, or conduct other specified public business whenever competitive or bargaining 42 
reasons require a closed session and §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits: 43 
At  4:25 P.M. a motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that the Marina Committee 44 
convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 45 
purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public 46 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call was 47 
taken on the motion and the Committee members voted in the following fashion: 48 
 49 

106



Minutes of the September 16, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

I:\2014 Agendas\Marina\2014\2014_09\091614 Marina Committee Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 09/16/2014; Last Printed: 10/9/2014 11:50 AM 

-4- 

 

Clove – Aye; 1 
Duffy – Aye; 2 

Solomon – Aye 3 
Motion carried. 4 
 5 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 6 
At 5:01 P.M. a motion was made by Duffy seconded by Solomon that the Marina Committee 7 
reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken on that motion and the 8 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 9 

Clove – Aye; 10 
Duffy – Aye; 11 

Solomon – Aye 12 
 13 
Motion carried. 14 
 15 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to take action if required: 16 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the performance incentive program 17 
for Wendy Tatzel, the Marina Manager, which was reviewed at this meeting is approved as 18 
amended. Motion carried – All ayes. 19 
 20 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to discuss matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 21 
to a committee, official or employee: 22 
The following issues will be addressed at a future Marina Committee meeting(s): 23 

 Discussion regarding marketing of the Marina; 24 

 Discussion regarding enhancement of Boat House revenues;   25 

 Discussion regarding Marina Fest revenues and expenditures; 26 

 Discussion regarding the 2015 Marina Fee Schedule; 27 

 Discussion regarding “gating” of the outfall pipe at the Marina; 28 

 Update on the progress which has been made on the boaters’ restroom 29 
renovations and the door painting project; 30 

 Discussion regarding potential installation of a fuel dock. At the meeting(s) when 31 
this discussion takes place these questions shall be answered:  32 

A. What is the difference in cost between a gravity and a non-gravity fuel   33 
system? 34 

B.  Will a gravity system work on B Dock? 35 
C.  Could fuel be put on B-Dock as it now exists? 36 

 37 
Adjournment: 38 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon to adjourn the meeting of the Marina 39 
Committee at 5:02 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 40 
 41 
Respectfully submitted,  42 

 43 
Janal Suppanz,  44 
Administrative Assistant 45 

107



SPECIAL PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The September 16, 2014 special meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee 6 
was called to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 6:34 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, and 12 
Administrative Assistant Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others:   Laddie Chapman 15 
 16 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 17 
Lienau noted that there was no new correspondence and then asked if anyone wished to 18 
comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 19 
   20 
Approval of Agenda: 21 
A motion was made by Baker seconded by Doersching that the Agenda for the September 22 
16, 2014 special meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion 23 
carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Business Items: 26 
Item No. 1. Discussion on parking lot layout on the Mill Road/Helm’s parcel which is 27 
being considered for D.O.T. 6(f) conversion; Consider a motion for action: 28 
When the work is done on the highway reconstruction project the D.O.T. will be acquiring 29 
a portion of Waterfront Park for right-of-way purposes, and in accord with State regulations 30 
must replace that property in-kind. The former Helm’s property on Mill Road, which is 31 
adjacent to the brick parking lot, is being considered for 6(f) conversion, and in accord 32 
with the Committee’s directives Jackson saw that two different conceptual parking plans – 33 
one which minimizes tree loss and the other which maximizes parking, were prepared. 34 
Those documents were included in the meeting packets and the Committee members 35 
jointly reviewed them. Some revisions were suggested and Jackson took note of all of 36 
them. Basically everything around the perimeter of the lot which does not contain trees 37 
will be parking spots and the center of it will consist of green space. 38 
 39 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the parking plan which is labeled 40 
“Alternative 2 – Maximize Parking” is approved as amended at this meeting. 41 
 42 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 43 
committee, official or employee: 44 
This agenda item was not addressed. 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 

108



Village of Sister Bay Special Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2014  

I:\2014 Agendas\Parks\2014\2014_09\Special Mtg\091614 Special PPS Meeting Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 9/3/2014; Last Printed: 9/26/2014 11:22 AM 

- 2 - 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker to adjourn the special meeting of the 2 
Parks Committee at 6:54 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Administrative Assistant 8 

109



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The September 23, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson 6 
Dave Lienau at 5:30 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Scott Baker, Shane Solomon, Marge Grutzmacher, 9 
and Don Howard.  10 
 11 
Excused:  Eric Lundquist and Nate Bell 12 
 13 
Others:  Lee and Ruth Telfer, Curt and Roxie Wiltse, and Greg Casperson. 14 
 15 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Administrative Assistant Janal 16 
Suppanz. 17 
 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 19 
Jackson noted that no correspondence related to a non-agenda item had been received, and 20 
Lienau then asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one 21 
responded.  22 
 23 
Approval of the agenda: 24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the Agenda for the September 23, 25 
2014 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Approval of minutes as published: 28 
As to the minutes for the August 26, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission: 29 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the August 26, 2014 30 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 31 
  32 
Business Items: 33 
Item No. 1.  Discussion regarding amendment and recreation of §66.0323 of the Zoning Code 34 
– Grandfathering in the B-3 Zoning District, and consider a motion to direct staff to develop 35 
changes for a public hearing: 36 
Two drafts of proposed amendments to §66.0323 of the Zoning Code – Grandfathering in the 37 
B-3 Zoning District, were included in the meeting packets and the Commission members jointly 38 
reviewed those documents.  39 
 40 
The drafts contain “Option A” which reads,  41 
 42 

“Option A”:  “(10) Lots in existence on or before May 31, 2015 shall be deemed 43 
conforming for lot size, width, and lot coverage if said lot and improvements 44 
thereon were conforming as of May 31, 2015 and had rights-of-way 45 
purchased by the WISDOT for the Bayshore Drive Resurfacing Project of 46 
2015. Land owners must produce a Certified Survey Map dated on or before 47 
May 31, 2015 of property lines and all improvements located thereon to be 48 
considered under (10)”;  49 

 50 

110



Minutes of the September 23, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

and  “Option B”, which reads:   1 
 2 
 “Option B”:  “Lots shall count rights-of-way to the centerline for purposes of calculating 3 

area, setbacks and open space.” 4 
 5 
It was the consensus that Option B is preferred, and Lee Telfer, Curt Wiltse and Greg 6 
Casperson, who were in the audience, all indicated that they agreed.  7 
 8 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Grutzmacher that on October 28, 2014 a public 9 
hearing shall be conducted regarding amendment and recreation of §66.0323 of the Zoning 10 
Code – Grandfathering in the B-3 Zoning District, in the fashion agreed upon at this meeting. 11 
Motion carried – All ayes. 12 
 13 
Item No. 2. Review of §66.0504 of the Zoning Code – Wireless Telecommunication Towers, 14 
and consider a motion to direct staff to develop changes for a public hearing: 15 
Jackson noted that an e-mail which had been received from Larry Kaufman was included in the 16 
meeting packets. In that e-mail Kaufman states that the 51 condominium owners in Sister Bluff 17 
Estates remain very unhappy with the cost and poor internet service provided by Charter 18 
Communications. He asks that the members of the Sister Bluff Estates Owner’s Association be 19 
advised of any Plan Commission Meetings at which wireless telecommunication towers will be 20 
discussed, and also notes that if the result will be improved internet access at a reasonable cost, 21 
the members of the Sister Bluff Estates Owner’s Association Board of Directors are very 22 
interested in meeting with anyone wishing to install new towers in Sister Bay.  23 
 24 
It was the consensus that this agenda item shall be tabled until such time as County officials 25 
have completed their review of the wireless telecommunication tower siting regulations. 26 
 27 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding 2014 updates to the Village’s Wetland Survey Map and 28 
consider a motion to direct staff to schedule a public hearing:  29 
A draft of a revised Zoning Map which shows the 2014 updates to the Village’s wetland 30 
delineations was included in the meeting packets and the Commission members jointly 31 
reviewed that document. During that time several Commission members noted that the 32 
wetlands on the Door County Ice Cream Factory property had been omitted. Howard also 33 
questioned the appropriateness of the wetland delineations which had been made for his 34 
property. Jackson will contact County officials regarding these issues, and, if possible, provide 35 
updated information at the next Plan Commission Meeting.  36 
 37 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that Agenda Item No. 3 – Discussion 38 
regarding 2014 updates to the Village’s Wetland Survey Map and consider a motion to direct 39 
staff to schedule a public hearing, shall be tabled until the October 28, 2014 meeting of the 40 
Plan Commission. Motion carried – All ayes.  41 
 42 
Item No. 4. Review of proposed revised plans for the Stony Ridge Development Expansion 43 
Project and consider a motion for approval: 44 
Village officials were originally contemplating granting a $600,000 TIF loan to Keith Garot for 45 
infrastructure improvements for the expansion project the Plan Commission had previously 46 
reviewed plans for, but when the Finance Committee formally addressed that request the 47 
decision was made that the proposed expansion plans should be scaled down and a reduced 48 
TIF loan of $300,000 granted. A draft of a revised Site Plan was included in the meeting packets 49 
and the Commission members jointly reviewed that document. If Garot intends to do further 50 

111



Minutes of the September 23, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\2014 Agendas\Plan Comm\2014\2014_09\092314 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 09/23/14; Last Printed: 10/15/2014 2:41 PM 

 -3-  

 

development he will have to come back before Village officials. The plans which were 1 
included in the meeting packets are compliant with Village regulations. Work is ongoing on a 2 
revised Development Agreement.    3 
 4 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Howard that the recommendation is made to 5 
the Village Board that the revised plans for the Stony Ridge Development Expansion Project be 6 
approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 7 
 8 
Item No. 5. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 9 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 10 
Jackson gave the following oral report:  11 

1.   The new wind energy tower siting regulation amendments as well as the amendments to 12 
§66.0501(2)(h) of the Zoning Code which pertain to deliveries for home based 13 
businesses in residential neighborhoods were approved by the Village Board. 14 

2.   Long Duration Special Event Permits have been issued to Tea Thyme and the Cookbook, 15 
and their banners are displayed on the Country Walk sign on S. Bay Shore Drive at this 16 
time. The tenants at the Country Walk Shops have agreed to alternate their business’ 17 
banners on the Country Walk Shops sign so that the traveling public knows what 18 
businesses are located within that development. 19 

3.   No Zoning Permits were issued for new construction projects last month. 20 
4.   He intends to contact a local business owner regarding a mowing violation in the near 21 

future. 22 
 23 

Item No. 6. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 24 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 25 
It was the consensus that:  26 
 27 

1.    Discussion regarding 2014 updates to the Village’s Wetland Survey Map and 28 
consideration of a motion to direct staff to schedule a public hearing will be 29 
addressed at the next meeting of the Plan Commission. 30 

2.    Review of §66.0504 of the Zoning Code – Wireless Telecommunication Towers, 31 
and consider a motion to direct staff to develop changes for a public hearing will 32 
be tabled until such time as County officials have completed their review of the 33 
wireless telecommunication tower siting regulations. 34 
 35 

Adjournment: 36 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Solomon to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 37 
Commission at 6:38 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 38 
 39 
Respectfully submitted,  40 

 41 
Janal Suppanz,  42 
Administrative Assistant 43 

112



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
COMMISSION and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 

Minutes of August 21, 2014 9:00 a.m. 3 
Town of Sevastopol 4528 STH 57 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Larson moved and Boston seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 7 

Tice moved and LeClair seconded to approve the July 17th, 2014 minutes. Motion carried. 8 

Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts to date.  Jackson moved and Anderson 9 
seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date.  Motion carried. 10 

Skare moved and Jackson seconded to table discussion of the draft financial policy. Motion carried. 11 

Consider a motion to approve the letter to Condominium Associations, Resorts and Time-share 12 
Resorts. Olsen moved and Jackson seconded to approve the letter as adjusted. Motion carried. 13 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, 14 
Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 15 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect 16 
to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions against 17 
lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly 18 
room tax report and tax payments.  LeClair moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes 19 
named Skare seconded. Motion carried. 20 

Anderson moved and Boston seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 21 

Jackson moved and Anderson seconded to waive late fees as discussed in Closed Session. Motion 22 
carried. 23 

Jackson moved and Anderson seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 24 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Mary Boston, Fred Anderson, Josh Van Lieshout, Jeff Larson, 25 
Myles Dannhausen, Nancy Robillard, Bill Weddig, Dick Skare, Elizabeth Le Clair, Frank Forkert, Tom 26 
Olsen, Zeke Jackson, Chuck Tice, and Nora Zacek. 27 

Excused: Bryan Nelson, Bob Starr, and Richard Briggs 28 

Absent:  Dave Holtz, Keith Krist, Dennis Statz, Carol Stayton and Deb Jeanquart. 29 
 30 
Also in Attendance:   Jack Moneypenny/ DCVB, Jon Jarosh/DCVB, Michelle Rasmussen/DCVB, Dianne 31 
Lensert/Kerber Rose, and Kim Roberts /Administrative Assistant DCTZC. 32 

Call to Order 33 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:09 a.m.   34 

Roll Call  35 

Approval of the Agenda 36 
Larson moved and Boston seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 37 

Approval of the minutes of July 17th, 2014 38 
Tice moved and LeClair seconded to approve the July 17th, 2014 minutes. Motion carried. 39 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts 40 
Moneypenny noted that the past three (3) weekends in Door County have been sold out weekends.  No 41 
rooms were available in the County regardless if they were member or non-member of the DCVB.  The goal 42 
is always to keep room nights within Door County.  The fourth weekend only two (2) rooms remained.   43 

Rasmussen said that they were hard at work on the 2015 strategic plan.  She went on to say that the Winter 44 
Guide has sold out.  September 24, 2014 the DCVB will reveal the cover of the 20154 Visitor Guide.   45 
Jarosh just completed a cherry themed press tour with fifteen (15) journalists.  He went on to say that most 46 
of the coverage will be for next year.  He added that individual press trips are scheduled throughout the rest 47 

113



of the season in addition to a outdoor recreational themed press trip.  AVE is up pass eleven (11) million 48 
since 2007 and by the end of the year the ROI will be $8 for every $1 spent, which Jarosh noted was a good 49 
return.  Jarosh went on to say that the journalist programs add to business in Door County. Remaining press 50 
trips for the 2014 season include: a motorcycle themed trip and a fall themed trip.    51 

Van Lieshout asked if the geographic profile of the Door County visitor was expanding.  He noted that there 52 
was 4.9% of traffic to the DCVB website from Wichita, KS which seemed like a new source of traffic.  53 
Rasmussen replied that nothing specifically had been placed in the market which would have driven the 54 
traffic to the website.  But there has been a lot of national press that probably resulted in the hits.  Jarosh 55 
added that he had checked stories to see if anything had been published in the area. 56 

Van Lieshout inquired about the referral sites.  He asked about the DNR site referral to the DCVB website.  57 
Jarosh said that the traffic was coming from the state park portion of the DNR website.  Moneypenny said 58 
specifically it was the, “explore the door” program through the DNR has been driving traffic to the DCVB 59 
site.   60 

Van Lieshout asked about group sales and whether or not eighty seven (87) birding clubs had inquired 61 
about meetings.  Rasmussen replied that she will double check the statistic. 62 

Moneypenny discussed the partnership in working with the Sturgeon Bay visitor center to bring the Bass 63 
Masters elite tournament to Sturgeon Bay the last weekend in September and first weekend of October 64 
2015.  He added that this is a championship tournament for the top fifty (50) bass fishermen and will be 65 
featured live on ESPN.  The event will create two thousand room nights total for the week which will result 66 
in increased room tax collections as well as great exposure for Door County.  Turney and Strochein are 67 
working to find sponsors for the event and the State and the DNR have been involved to make the event 68 
happen with the possibility of a grants and sponsorships.   He went on to say that the City of Sturgeon Bay 69 
will have to sign the contract with Bass Masters.  Van Lieshout felt that the event should provide good 70 
crowds beyond the fisherman.  Rasmussen added that as soon as the event is announced fisherman will start 71 
to come and fish the area ahead of the event.   72 

Weddig remarked that it would be nice to have information about full times to see how other business 73 
segments are doing in Door County beyond lodging.  Moneypenny replied that higher end restaurants are 74 
suffering this season.  He went on to say that he is hearing that there is less trash in the room which means 75 
visitors are eating out more.  Jackson concurred and said that waste industries are a measure of economic 76 
movement.  He added that this season Sister Bay has doubled the amount of trash removal.  Jackson also said 77 
that the Washington Island Ferry service is up 4% which is not due to a price increase.   78 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with 79 
permitting new members. 80 
Roberts reported that she sent out sixty four (64) no report letters for the report month of May on July 18th, 81 
2014.   She added that as of August 8, 2014 thirteen (13) properties remain to report for May 2014. 82 

The total outstanding due in unpaid taxes, fees and penalties is two hundred twenty five dollars and ninety 83 
two cents ($225.92) from three (3) permit holders at the time the report was printed.  Roberts went on to 84 
say that since she did billing, the current outstanding total was one thousand two hundred fifty five dollars 85 
and fourteen cents ($1,255.14).  86 

Roberts said that she had permitted sixteen (16) new properties since the last meeting.  She added that she 87 
is currently at work on permitting five (5) more properties found online advertising for transient rental 88 
without the proper permit.  89 

Roberts advised the Commission that she had heard from Attorney Vande Castle who has been working 90 
with other statewide municipalities involving room tax.  A discussion has developed in that the same 91 
services/ amenities are provided to RV sites and transient boat slips that one would receive in staying with a 92 
lodging provider and whether or not room tax should be applicable to these services. 93 

Van Lieshout asked that Vande Castle be invited to open the discussion and have an exploratory 94 
conversation about the issue at the next full Commission meeting in October.  Danhaussen asked Van 95 
Lieshout how he felt about the idea as an operator.  Van Lieshout said from an operations standpoint he felt 96 
the only obstacle would be upgrading software, but that it was time to do so regardless. He added from the 97 
standpoint of servicing customers, he didn’t think it would matter at all.  Van Lieshout felt that the 98 
conversation would get interesting when involving the DNR. 99 

114



Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers for 2013 100 
Lensert said that numbers were rerun the earlier months this month to include late collections.  Year to date, 101 
collections are up 4.3%.  She noted that all months are up in occupancy and that the ADR is steady.  June 102 
was up 1.9%. 103 

Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts to date. 104 
Anderson moved and Zacek seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date.  Motion 105 
carried. 106 

Report from Commissioners on feedback from local boards on recent issues. 107 
No Comments. 108 

Discussion of Draft Financial Policy 109 
Skare moved and Jackson seconded to table the discussion until Nelson is in attendance.  Motion 110 
carried. 111 

Discussion of Draft Letter to Condominium Associations, Resorts and Time-share Resorts 112 
Van Lieshout said a letter was drafted to help properties communicate to their owners more effectively to 113 
help inform them of their duties and responsibilities if they wish to rent their properties on their own. 114 

Roberts clarified that the properties listed on the list for the letters to be sent are only listed to serve as a 115 
way to get the information in newsletters, POA agendas or posted so that more people are aware. 116 
Danhaussen brought up the issue of exchanges involving timeshares.  Van Lieshout said according to state 117 
law anything bartered or exchanged is taxable.   Danhaussen stressed that as owners of timeshare exchanges 118 
have the right to exchange their weeks.  Roberts agreed, but added that RCI is permitted separately from 119 
each property in Door County that it involved with .   120 
 121 
Consider a motion to approve the letter to Condominium Associations, Resorts and Time-share 122 
Resorts.  Olsen moved and Jackson seconded to approve the letter as adjusted. Motion carried. 123 

Discussion of amendment to intergovernmental agreement to include policy for the deactivation and  124 
Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, 125 
Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 126 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect 127 
to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions against 128 
lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly 129 
room tax report and tax payments. 130 

LeClair moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named Skare seconded. Motion carried. 131 
CLOSED SESSION 132 

Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 133 
Anderson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Boston seconded. Motion carried. 134 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 135 
Jackson moved and Anderson seconded to waive late fees as discussed in Closed Session. Motion 136 
carried. 137 

Adjournment 138 

Jackson moved to adjourn; Anderson seconded. Motion carried.  139 

 140 
Respectfully submitted, 141 
 142 

 143 
Kim Roberts 144 
Administrative Assistant 145 
 146 

115



 DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 

Minutes of September 18th, 2014, 9:00 a.m. 3 
Paul J Bertschinger Community Center, 7860 STH 42, Egg Harbor, Wisconsin 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Skare moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 7 

Weddig moved and Le Clair seconded to approve the August 21st, 2014 minutes. Motion carried. 8 

Nelson moved and LeClair seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date Motion carried.   9 

Skare motioned and Nelson seconded to table the Financial Policy for another month to allow Attorney Vande Castle 10 
the opportunity to review it. Motion carried. 11 

Starr moved and Weddig seconded to  convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 12 
19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice 13 
concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to 14 
wit: enforcement actions against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit 15 
monthly room tax report and tax payments. Motion carried by roll call. 16 

Weddig moved and Nelson seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 17 

Starr moved and Nelson seconded to adjourn at 10:56 AM. Motion carried. 18 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Josh Van Lieshout, Bryan Nelson, Elizabeth LeClair, Bill Wedding, Dick 19 
Skare, Bob Starr and Dave Holtz. 20 

Also in Attendance: Kim Roberts /Administrative Assistant DCTZC, Dianne Lensert/Kerber Rose 21 

Call to order 22 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:04AM. 23 

Approval of the Agenda 24 
Skare moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 25 

Approval of the August 21st, 2014 minutes 26 
Weddig moved and Le Clair seconded to approve the August 21st, 2014 minutes. Motion carried. 27 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts 28 
The Door County Visitor Bureau/Jack Moneypenny was not in attendance for the meeting.  Le Clair mentioned that 29 
Facebook was down in August year over year.  Nelson added that mobile activity was up.  Starr went on to say Facebook 30 
changed algorithm which could have had an effect on statistics.  He added that the look is more commercial with the 31 
changes. 32 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with permitting new 33 
members 34 
Roberts reported that for the report month of June she sent out fifty four (54) “No Report” letters to owner managed 35 
properties on August 14th, 2014.  As of September 9th, 2014, only eighteen (18) no reports remain for the month of June.  36 
Unpaid taxes, fees and interest amount to $2,845.51 as of September 11th, 2014 from fifteen (15) permit holders.    Roberts 37 
notes that eight (8) of the first notices are ACH rejects stemming from input errors of banking and /or routing 38 
information causing the payments to be returned.   Roberts went on to say that as of September 15th, 2014 the unpaid 39 
taxes, fees and penalties were already down to $709.41.   40 
Seven (7) permits were issued since August reporting.  Roberts reported that she is currently at work on six (6) 41 
unpermitted properties through compliance efforts.  Four (4) of the seven (7) properties were found by Roberts 42 
advertising online. 43 
Roberts went on to say that she had included background information about RCI in Door County to clarify some 44 
questions from the previous full Commission meeting.  She included a current list of properties that RCI files room tax 45 
reports on monthly basis, as well as, background emails from the initial permitting of the properties. 46 
Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers 47 
Lensert reported that there were still a number of reports out there to be filed.  Down 3.5% for July, but when she reran 48 
numbers on September 17th, the county as only down -2.2% for July.  She felt confident that the number would continue 49 
to rise as reports come in.  She also mentioned that there were roughly 7000 room nights to be reported for July.- 50 

116



Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts to date. 1 
Nelson moved and LeClair seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date Motion carried.   2 

Report from Commissioners on Feedback from Local Boards on Recent Issues 3 
No feedback or news to report. 4 

Discussion of Draft Financial Policy 5 
Nelson felt that Roberts had covered most scenarios and as the DCTZC continues to evolve the document can be updated.  6 
Skare motioned and Nelson seconded to table the Financial Policy for another month to allow Attorney Vande Castle 7 
the opportunity to review it. Motion carried. 8 

Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to 9 
confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 10 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions 11 
against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and 12 
tax payments. Motion carried by roll call. 13 

Starr moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Weddig seconded. Motion carried 14 

CLOSED SESSION 15 
Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 16 

Weddig moved and Nelson seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 17 

Adjournment 18 
Starr moved and Nelson seconded to adjourn at 10:56 AM. Motion carried. 19 
 20 
The meeting adjourned at 10:26 a.m. 21 
Respectfully submitted, 22 

 23 
Kim Roberts 24 
Administrative Assistant 25 
 26 

  27 

117



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 

118



- 2 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

119



- 3 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

120



- 4 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 

 24 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\utilities\2014\2014_10\100714 water sewer stormwater comm minutes - unapproved version 1.doc 25 
Created: 10/10/2014 8:00 AM Printed: 10/17/2014 3:26 PM  26 

121



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 

122



- 2 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

123



- 3 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

124



- 4 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

 19 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\utilities\2014\2014_10\100714 water sewer stormsewer comm minutes - unapproved version 1.doc 20 
Created: 10/10/2014 8:00 AM Printed: 10/17/2014 3:28 PM  21 

125



126



127



128




